Farmersville

DISCOVER A TEXAS TREASURI

CITY OF FARMERSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR CALLED MEETING
JUNE 20, 2016, 6:30 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
205 S. Main Street

. PRELIMINARY MATTERS

¢ Call to Order, Roll Call, Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
. REORGANIZATION OF COMMISSION
A. Swearing in of Bobby Bishop and Russell Chandler

B. Election of Chairman
C. Election of Vice-Chairman
D. Election of Secretary
lil. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION
A. Consider, discuss and act upon minutes from April 18, 2016

B. Public hearing to consider, discuss and act on a final plat for Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block
1 of the Neathery Johnson Addition, in the W.B. Williams Survey, Abstract No. 952,
City of Farmersville, Collin County, Texas located on the northeast corner of the
intersection of Neathery Street and South Johnson Street together with requested
waivers that will reduce the required right-of-way dedication for Neathery Street
upon and across the length of the southern boundary of the property and South
Johnson Street upon and across the length of the eastern boundary of the property
from a 10’ wide right-of-way dedication to a 5’ wide right-of-way dedication for each
such roadway.

V. WORK SESSION

A. Consider, discuss and act upon the request from the City Council to review and
update the Sign Ordinance

B. Consider, discuss, and act upon the request from the City Council to implement
building height restrictions within the commercial district

V. ADJOURNMENT

The Planning and Zoning Commission reserves the right to adjourn into Executive
Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matters listed

Page 1 of 64



on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, including, but not
limited to, Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need assistance
should contact the City Secretary at 972-782-6151 or Fax 972-782-6604 at least two (2)
working days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.
Handicap Parking is available in the front and rear parking lot of the building.

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted in
the regular posting place of the City Hall building for Farmersville, Texas, in a place and
manner convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said
Notice was posted on June 16, 2016, by 5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously
at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Dated this the 16" day of June, 2016.

fo By

ik

/ Mary Tate,U City Secretary

Bryce Thompson, Chairman

Page 2 of 64



l. Preliminary Matters

Page 3 of 64



Il. Reorganization

Page 4 of 64



lll. Items for discussion and possible action

Page 5 of 64



lIl. A. Consider, discuss and act upon minutes from April 18, 2016

Page 6 of 64



Farmersville

DISEOVER A TEXAS TREASURI

CITY OF FARMERSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES
FROM
April 18, 2016, 6:30 P.M.

.  PRELIMINARY MATTERS

» The Meeting was called to order by Chairman Bryce Thompson at 6:30pm.
Commissioners Bryce Thompson, Craig Overstreet, Sarah Jackson-Butler,
Charles Casada, Russell Chandler, and Chad Dillard were present.
Commissioner Mark Vincent was absent. The following city staff members
were in attendance: City Attorney, Alan Lathrom, City Manager, Ben White,
Assistant Interim City Secretary, Mary Tate, Police Chief Sullivan, Code
Enforcement Officials, Karen Dixon and Cameron Brooks, and Council
Liaison John Klostermann.

= Craig Overstreet offered the prayer and Pledges to the United States and
Texas flags.

iIl. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION
A. Consider, discuss and act upon minutes from March 28, 2016
* Motion to approve the minutes was made by Craig Overstreet

e 2" was made by Chad Dillard
¢ All commissioners voted in favor thereby approving the minutes

B. City Manager to provide update on 4A's (FEDC) involvement in possible
Zoning Ordinance rewrite

* Ben White addressed the commission to let them know that the City
Attorney will be attending the next 4A meeting to make sure that 4A’s use
of funds for a zoning rewrite is legal. There will be an update at the next
P&Z meeting.

. WORKSHOP
A. Consider, discuss and act upon the request from the City Council to review
and update the Sign Ordinance. Chief Sullivan and staff will address specific
issues that they face in enforcing the ordinance as it is written.

Page 7 of 64



Chief Sullivan came before the commissioners and stated that he and his
staff were asked to review the Sign Ordinance. He said that overall they
like it, but the issue that they regularly face has to do with temporary signs
and the ability to enforce based on a time period. As of now, there is no
way to capture time and that presents a problem in enforcement. Code
Enforcement Official Karen Dixon presented different kinds of temporary
signs with reference to the Sign Ordinance, the first being “wind signs”.
Sarah Jackson-Butler asked if there is any type of zero-dollar permitting
process in place. Ben White responded that there is not, but that this could
be added. City Attomey, Alan Lathrom, suggested using the term
“registration” rather than “permit” as to avoid monetary confusion. A
discussion followed regarding appropriate terminology (register/notify/etc.)
and establishing a process for this. This will be an internal process
between city staff.

Karen Dixon addressed “balloon signs” next. She said the issue again is
identifying time and the length of time a sign has been displayed. Craig
Overstreet asked if the city has a lot of balloon signs. Karen Dixon said
there are not many but there is a need to clarify. Bryce Thompson asked if
the department would want these signs registered as well. Chief said yes
they would.

The next sign brought to attention was “grand opening” signs. Chief
suggested that maybe there shouldn't be a permit for this since it is
associated with a Certificate of Occupancy and needs to be handled
through the CO process. In staying with that process, he said it is easier to
capture a time. Sarah Jackson-Butler asked who the building official is.
Ben White responded that he is the building official.

B. At this point, Chairman Thompson stated that a concerned resident brought
some concerns regarding downtown signs to the attention of the board
through a letter, which is attached at the end of this document. Chairman
Thompson cited some examples form the letter, such as non-conforming use
and pole signs and sign placement. Alan Lathrom provided an explanation of
how zoning and sign ordinances overlap and how the interpretation of zoning
definitions changed when ordinance changed. He said the city still had to
recognize non-conforming rights.

Sarah Jackson Butler asked how then, are we to interpret the ordinances?
Alan Lathrom said in these cases, the variance process needs to take
place. Sarah Jackson-Butler argued that it still comes back to
interpretation. Ben White stated that each case is evaluated separately.
Alan Lathrom added that there are several steps and sections to look at.
The ordinance is restrictive in the central area and there may be
inconsistencies in interpretation.
Craig Overstreet had two questions: 1.For city events, how long can signs
be put up with permission from homeowner? Alan Lathrom replied that
special event signs may go up 14 days before an event and must be taken
Page 8 of 64



down 14 days after the event concludes. 2. What do we call signs on the
Chaparral Trail? They are directional or informational signs.

Chairman Thompson asked if 14 days is a blanket length. Alan Lathrom
answered that it is specified under certain sections as to length,
restrictions, and permits. Ben White added that the City has taken the
attitude that city signs should be in line with what we require of our
commercial businesses, which are monument signs. Alan Lathrom
corrected himself as he misspoke regarding length of time signs can be
put up before an event; they may go up 7 days in advance not 14.

Ben White asked if all issues within the letter had been covered. Bryce
Thompson said no and that there appears to be an issue regarding corner
buildings and having a sign on both sides. Ben White did not believe that
was correct and said that is addressed under “wall signs”. The ordinance
outlines very specifically what is allowed. The Central Area (CA) portion
further identifies what is/is not allowed.

Alan Lathrom said it appears that the ordinance addresses the issues
within the letter, but there are times when this is not what the owner
wants. To really analyze the situation, designs and images are needed.
Bryce Thompson stated that he did not recall any requests for variances
pertaining to these issues for signage downtown. Russell Chandler
mentioned that in the past, ReMax and the Bank requested variances.
Ben White added that the City does not try to prohibit anything but rather
work with people. He also said that someone cannot get a variance for
something that is prohibited.

The topic of A-frame signs was addressed. They are prohibited in central
area. Sandwich boards, on the other hand, are allowed. These consist of 2
pieces of wood connected with hinges. The ordinance was done this way
because of ADA clearance and size.

Craig Overstreet noticed that under Sect. 56.110, the ordinance reads the
P&Z sits as the Sign Board of Appeals. This is not true. The City Council is
the Sign Board of Appeals.

Sarah Jackson-Butler asked for clarification on the size percentages of
signs to be piaced near windows. Above windows is 25% and below
windows is 10%.

Russell Chandler went back to the temporary signs, such as those that the
Fire Department puts downtown. He said this is not allowed, correct? Alan
Lathrom said that those signs fall under special events and can be put out
no earlier than 7 days before the event.

Ben White said staff will come back to P&Z Board with changes and they
can give direction. Alan Lathrom added that nothing is intended to
discriminate but rather to give consistency. Sarah Jackson-Butler asked
about SectioOn 56.4f. Alan Lathrom clarified that the building official
absolutely can revoke but is not binding to the city.

Page 9 of 64



Iv.

» Craig Overstreet asked if the lights around Blevins Gallery were allowed
stating that they are light pollution. Alan Lathrom said this would be looked
in to.

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting was adjourned at 7:50pm.

APPROVED:

Bryce Thompson, Chairman

Page 10 of 64



~ March 21, 2016
TO: P&Z Board Members
FR: Diane Piwko

As you consider updates to the Farmersville Sign Ordinance, I would like to relay my experiences and
stories from other downtown merchants over the past 10 years of doing business.

The main problem with the sign ordinance is that it does not take into consideration any signs that may
have existed prior to a new business occupying the building. It is inflexible and does not allow for the
practice of common sense to take precedent.

For example, in the case of my building, 200 McKinney St, two signs were painted on the front corner
of the building on the second floor. I have seen pictures showing signs existing in that location dating
back to the 1950's. The Texas Historical Commission recommended that the signs be covered instead of
trying to remove them and damaging the brick. This has caused problems in other parts of the sign
ordinance

1) Icould not put my street address on a brand new awning because it was two signs on the
same face (56-31, Awning #1) ,

2) Because of the location between two windows, my signs are smaller then 1 would
normally be permitted but I am not allowed to use the extra space elsewhere. Before the
sign ordinance, this was not an issue and numerous photos exist of my building with
signs spanning the entire front and sides. That was the character of Farmersville that is
now illegal.

3) Limiting signs to only one per side of a building discriminates against the two story
corner buildings where separate purposes may be used for each floor, often using
different entrances. In a few cases, a multistory building can actually have two different
street addresses. Therefore, both addresses can not appear at the appropriate entrance.

4) Because roof signs are not allowed, when the framework became unsafe I could not
rebuild the cornice that existed on my building from 1899 . In fact, decorative cornices
are not allowed at all in either new or renovation construction that advertises the history
or business of a building,.

Independent Bank also had trouble with the sign ordinance, not being able to keep the footprint of the
prior First Bank signs, especially in regards to illumination.

There are some specific suggestions:

Allow a super-majority vote of either the P&Z board or City Council to override the sign
ordinance on a case-by-case basis. This would be legal, documented and could take into consideration
past histories of a building. By having everything publicly done, favoritism is minimized.

56-4 (f) Interpretation and administration. The building official shall be responsible for
interpreting and administering this section. The building official may revoke any permit for a
sign issued in error. In at least one instance, a permit that was issued, the sign installed, and was later
revoked after an anonymous complaint, causing the sign owner to incur costs over $250. Either remove
the last sentence or have the city reimburse the sign permit applicant for costs incurred due to their
error.



56-31, Banners are limited to being“used to promote awareness of special events or as seasonal
decoration”. This does not allow a resident of the downtown to support a political candidate, a
violation of our first amendment rights. In fact, the Supreme Court ruled in June 2015 that the content

of signs cannot be regulated by a sign ordinance (REED v TOWN OF GILBERT, ARIZONA).

This whole court ruling needs to be reviewed as it applies to Farmersville's code because it is effecting
sign ordinances all over the country.

56-31 Canopy sign attachments (small signs mounted to be visible looking down the sidewalk) are
allowed but awning signs are not. Why? In the awning sign portion, this is contradicted later in 53-56

(c)(6)

56-31- Menu Boards - A menu board sign shall be supported from the grade to the bottom of the
sign having or appearing to have a solid base. Sonic and other fast food restaurants do not meet this.
Were they grandfathered? Note that there are several instances in this definition that refer to solid
bases. It seems no distinction is made between a single sign and multiple, smaller signs.

56-31- Mobile Advertisement Sign. (1) A mobile advertisement is prohibited in the city and its
extraterritorial jurisdiction for longer than 20 minutes in a 24-hour day. And Portable Signs are
prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction, except as specifically allowed by other
sections and subsections of this chapter. This makes it hard to advertise events in the downtown such
as OTS and the Sparks of Freedom by placing temporary signs on Hwy 380. Recommend signs be
allowed for one day prior to events and event duration with valid permit. This also ties into the Off-
Premises and Off-Location sign portions of section 56-31.

56-31- Monument Sign means a freestanding sign having a low profile, supported from the grade
to the bottom of the sign having, or appearing to have, a solid base made of stone, concrete,
metal, brick, routed wood planks or beams, or similar materials equivalent to the architecture of
the building or complex. Why? Are two supports not equally attractive when done well? This is
currently causing problems with the Welcome to Farmersville Signs and can be attractively done either
way.

56-31 A-Frame Signs and Sandwich Board Signs have the same definitions but different size
limits (2 ft different in width). Why?

56-31 Wall Signs (3) Maximum wall coverage for signs placed on the front or side of a building,
which wall contains a main entrance into the building, above the highest opening (window or
door), shall be limited to 25 percent of the area, measured vertically from the highest opening
(window or door) up to the highest point of the wall, and horizontally from outside corner to
outside corner of such wall, including openings. The Golden Mean (approx 33%) is recognized as
being most visually pleasing and is a recurring feature in architectural designs. It provides better
balances and ascetics. Please increase the maximum allowable width and height of signs up to 33%. As
numerous businesses have found out, a 6 ft x 4 ft sign (25% of a 25 ft wide single-story store front)
mounted high above the sidewalk is not very readable. Especially when in the CA district bright,
standout colors are not allowed.



~ 56-53 ( ¢ ) Sign Standards (4) Signs should be placed under the lower cornice. No sign shall be
allowed above the top of the second-story windows of a building. This part of the ordinance
discriminates against a single individual as only one building above 2 stories exists in the CA. Is that
legal?

56-53 ( ¢ ) Sign Standards (6 E) Awnings and awning signs shall not be made of metal, shiny
plastic, barrel or square extension awning, or internally-illuminated vinyl awning,

Why? Metal is a historic material and the safest to make signs out of. The Historical Commission also
recommends metal as an awning material.

Kiosk signs, as being added to the Chaparral trail, are not defined in the ordinance at all.



l.8.

Public hearing to consider, discuss and act on a final plat for Lots 1, 2, & 3,
Block 1 of the Neathery Johnson Addition, in the W.B. Williams Survey,
Abstract No. 952, City of Farmersville, Collin County, Texas located on the
northeast corner of the intersection of Neathery Street and South Johnson
Street together with requested waivers that will reduce the required right-of-
way dedication for Neathery Street upon and across the length of the
southern boundary of the property and South Johnson Street upon and
across the length of the eastern boundary of the property from a 10’ wide
right-of-way dedication to a 5’ wide right-of-way dedication for each such
roadway.

Page 14 of 64



ENGINEERS__

27 April 2016

Mr. Ben White, P.E.

City of Farmersville

205 S Main St,
Farmersville, Texas 75442

RE: Neathery Johnson Final Plat

Mr. White;

The above referenced plat has been reviewed according to the ordinances of the City of
Farmersville. Comments sent to the surveyor have been addressed.

It is recommended that the final plat be approved. Please contact me if you should have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
SoN \\
/ﬁ, 5','?..9.. “‘\
7 28 f e
James M. Shankles, Jr. BE. g2 ) \ 5,’
.........*ME.sfmr..Las A ;
65571 j‘u
‘Q. ISTE e “’-'
‘rslo .-"'. “6\
\ \"

DANIEL & BROWN INC.
118 MCKINNEY STREET | PO Box 606 | FARMERSVILLE, TEXAS 75442
OFFICE 972-784-7777 | WWW.DBICONSULTANTS.COM
FIRM REGISTRATION NO: F-002225



Farmersville

DIMCRIVER A TENAS TR VS RE

Final Plat Review Checklist

The use of City of Farmersville administrative forms, checklists, and routing sheets shall not reficve the applicant from following the rules,
standards, ordinances, and lmws governing the City of Farmersville.

Name of Subdivision Mf/ﬂm"f J’HI/J 'I\/ ﬁﬁ//h/ HM’

Owner

ooy L. ¢ ly

Reviewed By JAMMI' ( Vi MW{)

Date

27 Ao zote

Place “X" or clteck mark in appropriate hox, Place “N/A in baxes where the line item is “not applicable”.

Submission Materials

Six copies of plat. Dimensions should be 24” X 36”.

Original certified tax certificate

Utility service provider letters

Proof of land ownership document

Electronic version of plat on CD (PDF and .DWG)

Governmental (TxDOT, Collin County, etc.) approval for major thoroughfare access
such as driveway

Farmersville Independent School District (FISD) accommodation letter (high impact
residential or multi-family only)

On-Site Sanitary Sewer Facility (OSSF) certification document

Development schedule

Development agreement

Copy of covenants, conditions, restrictions, and agreements

Geotechnical report

Traffic study

Application letter for proposed street names

General

Date of preparation. Revision letter suggested.

The plat substantially conforms to the approved Preliminary Plat.

The plat shall state the name, address, and telephone number of the owner and be
signed and notarized.

1 Revision D




Final Plat Review Checklist

The plat shall state the name, address, and telephone number of the surveyor and/or
engineer.

Indicate the total acreage and legal description of the subdivision.

Provide a small scale vicinity map on the plat indicating the location of the subdivision
in relation to other subdivisions major roads, towns, cities, counties and/or
topographical features. Indicate city limits and/or ETJ or indicate by note all within
city limits or ETJ

Indicate the distance to the nearest road intersection.

Provide the names of the adjacent property owners and/or subdivisions, the
vol./pagefinstrument number deed and lot/block/date recorded.

Provide North arrow and scale (both graphical and written).

Indicate the school district(s) where the subdivision is located.

Indicate the proposed phases of development.

Indicate any lots proposed for parks, squares, greenbelts, school or other public use
facilities.

Building setbacks

Lot and block numbering are provided and match the legal description of the property.

Indicate boundary lines, abstract or survey lines, corporate or other jurisdictional
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and streets.

The length and bearing of all lot lines and reference ties to a survey corner or existing
subdivision corner.

Establish 2 permanent monuments per development tied to City's approved vertical
control monumentation

Tie at least one corner of the subdivision to the City’s approved vertical control
monumentation

The location, width and names of all streets, alleys, and easements.

The proposed arrangement and square footage (acreage) of lots.

A title block within the lower right hand corner which shows the name of the
subdivision, the name and address of the owner, name of the land planner, licensed
engineer or registered surveyor who prepared the plat, the scale of the plat, the date of
the plat and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey records of
the county.

Scale, date and north arrow oriented at the top or left side of the sheet.

Zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties

Conforms with Collin or Hunt County plat standards

Physical features of or on the land that should not be shown on the plat: topography,
buildings, structures, water bodies, tree cover, etc.

Statements

As required for final plats in the subdivision regulations.

Provide a place for the County Clerk of Collin County to stamp the date and location
where the plat will be filed in the lower right hand corner of the plat drawing.

Property owner’s certificate in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.4.a

urvevor’s certificate in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.4.b

Approval block in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.4.c

2 Reuvision D




Final Plat Review Checklist

£,
i

Special notice in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.4.d

Nik

VAM easement notice in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.5

M

Access easement notice in accordance with City Subdivision Ordinance 2.5.B.6

Vit

Provide a statement that all On Site Septic Systems comply with the requirements of
any applicable State, County, and/or City requirements for on-site sewage facilities, and
the signature of the designated representative.

i

For a private road include the phrase: “...as recorded in Vol. ___ Page ___ (instrument
number) of the Official Public Records of County.”

=

Road And Right-Of-Way Information

wk

Provide the name, location, length and right-of-way widths of all proposed road and
existing roads

i

Provide written confirmation by 911 for proposed road name(s)

Show the location, size and proposed use of all proposed access easements, or shared
access driveways.

Mk

Drainage

MA | Show any required drainage easements.

Floodplain

i

Show the 100 year floodplain, regulatory floodway (if applicable) and base flood
elevations or state that none of the subdivision lies within the 100 year floodplain.
Include the applicable FIRM community-panel number.

i

Show the limits of the floodplain within a dedicated drainage easement.

M

Include the following statement: “All development within the 100-yvear floodplain shall
comply with all applicable orders and regulations, including but not limited to Collin
County’s “Flood Damage Prevention Order.” A floodplain development permit shall be
obtained from the City or County Engineer’s Office prior to the construction of any
structure(s) within the floodplain.”

Provide a benchmark showing NGVD 29 elevation, with latitude and longitude
coordinates.

Minimum finished floor elevations of the building foundations shall be shown for lots
adjacent to a flood plain or susceptible to flooding.

Utilities

Identify water supply provider, the source of the water intended to serve the
subdivision, and indicate the CCN number

If groundwater is the water source, provide required certification by registered engineer

Provide on-site sewage facility study information if outside the municipal sanitary
sewer system

Provide recording information on all existing utility easements.

Show any required utility easements.

Verify that City utilities, services, and streets (electric, water, sewer, street) are
provided to each lot. Additionally, use service provider letters to verify other utilities
that may be required such as gas, telephone, and cable.

3 Revision D




Farmersville

DS OVER N TENAS TRUASLRI RECE'VEDMQr&O;‘\B

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION FORM

City of Farmersville, Texas  ENGINEER REVI
e aflack gg ]ﬁié

Please Type or Print Information

This form shall be completed by the Applicant and submitted fo the City Secrefary’s Office along with 6 copies of the respective plal,
fees, and off other required information,

In order for a completed packoge 1o be considered for a Planning and Zoning Board meeting all application matenals will need o be
tumed info the City stoff ot least 3 weeks prior. The package will need to be technically complete 6 working doys prior o the Flanning
and Zoning Board meeting.

The use of City of Farmersville odministrative forms, checklists, and routing sheets shall not refieve the applicont from following the rufes,
standordss, ordinances, and lows goveming the Cily of Farmersville.

The submission of plans/drawings, calculations, eic., along with this application, makes such items public record and the Applicant
undlerstonds that they may be viewed and/or reproduced by the general public,

For a fist of fees associated sea the City of Farmersville Master Fee Schedile. Fees shall be collected for the purpose of defraying the
costs of odministrative, clerical, engineering, legal, planning, inspection, and other services deemed necessary to properly review ond
investigate plots and subdivision construction.

Exemptions fo the plotiing process are listed in section 1.5 of the Subdivision Ordlinance.

Subdivision Ordinance variances/waivers may be granted by following the steps outiined in section 1.10 of the Subdivision Ordinance.
Public infrastructure requirements estoblished by the respective code (example, infemational Fire Code) and inferpreted by the codle

official may be appealed based on a claim of incomect interpretation, code applicability, or equivalent methodology. Code
requirements connot be waived.

Place “X" or check mark in gppropriofe box. All enswers must be “Yes” to submit application,

Pre-Application Requirements

No Requirement

Attended Pre-Application Conference

Plat described by metes and bounds

Plat located with respect to a corner of the survey or tract or an original
corner of the original survey of which it is a part

Dimensions of plat and of each sireet, alley, square, park, or other part
of the plat intended to be dedicated to public use or for the use of
purchasers or owners of lots fronting on or adjacent to the street, alley,
square, park, or other part

< N NN

Plat is located in Collin County

1 Pavsicinn F



Subdivision Application Form

Plat is located in Hunt County

/

Plat is located within the City of Farmersville corporate limits or Extra-
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) limits

Place “X” or check mark in appropriate bax, Use the N/A (not applicobls) bax if a line item is not applicable. Double asterisk items are
required for all applications. Where separate documents are requested attach them o this submission.

Required Submission Materials

No

N/A

Item Description

** Six copies of plat. Dimensions should be 24” X 36”.

* * Original certified tax certificate

SSN[RNE

v | ** Utility service provider letters
** Proof of land ownership document
** Electronic version of plat on CD (.PDF and .DWG)
** Fees with appropriate retainer as required
Governmental (TxDOT, Collin County, etc.) approval for major
v thoroughfare access such as driveway
Farmersville Independent School District (FISD) accommodation letter
v’ (high impact residential or multi-family only)
v~ | Two copies of engineering plans
v~ | On-Site Sanitary Sewer Facility (OSSF) certification document
v~ | Engineer’s Summary Report
L~ | Development schedule
v | Development agreement
A"| Copy of covenants, conditions, restrictions, and agreements
v | Geotechnical report
1| Troffic study
L~ | Application letter for proposed street names

Place “X” or check mark in appropriate box. Only one bax may be indicated,

Type of Plat Document Submittal

Concept Plan

Preliminary Plat

Final Plat

Development Plat

Replat

Amending Plat

Minor Plat

2 Pavsicinn F




Subdivision Application Form

| Vacated Plat

Place information in afl spaces that apply. Depending on the silvation some spaces may be left emply.

Property Owner Information

Name oY Ay
Address L 755 . & oS
City FammeE=s oo
State - %

Zip —Z S L L2

Work Phone Number

Facsimile Number

Mobile Phone Number

= 1 4 Tl eSS

Email Address

codhg3Ps Sz

Applicant/Responsible Party Information

Name

A e A = o A~ =T

Address

City

State

Zip

Work Phone Number

Facsimile Number

Mobile Phone Number

Email Address

Engineer Information

Name

/*-’//A

Address

City

State

Zip

Work Phone Number

Faesimile Number

Mobile Phone Number

Email Address

Pavicinm F



Subdivision Application Form

Surveyor Information

Name AT ATTHIHE S TBoS P v
Address [/ Le ap b TrndE v Sy
City Fammermas vl &

State >

Zip ar 2N A Ay X

Work Phone Number z £ LT R L7

Facsimile Number

Mobile Phone Number

Email Address

Prbvb e Lo oo Nyt e, o

General Application Information

Proposed Name of Subdivision | s svwemt o7 afauC o  rmpas v on

Total Acreage of Development . R 4

Physical Location of Property oL e TR T Al EATe e oy
Legal Description of Property ==z PLaT

Number of Lots =

Place “X” or check mark in oppropriate bax indicating the form provided for proof of lend ownership. Attoch document fo this
subrmission.

Type of Plat Document Submittal

v | General Warranty Deed

Special Warranty Deed

Title Policy

Other (approved by City Managen):

4 Poviicimnn F



Subdlivision Application Form

Place “X* or check mark in oppropriote box indicating the curment zoning districts comprising the land. Depending on the sitvation more

than one box may be indicated.
Current Zoning
A Agricultural District
SF-1 | One-Family Dwelling District
1+~ | SF-2 | One-Family Dwelling District
SF-3 | One-Family Dwelling District
2F | Two-Family Dwelling District
MF-1_ | Multiple-Family Dwelling District-1
MF-2 | Multiple-Family Dwelling District-2
P Parking District
O Office District
NS | Neighborhood Service District
GR | General Retail District
C Commercial District
HC | Highway Commercial
CA | Ceniral Area District
I-1 Light Industrial District
I-2 | Heavy Industrial District
PD Planned Development District

Extra~Territorial Jurisdiction

Pansicinn F



Subdivision Application Form

Place "X* or check mark in oppropriate box indicating the proposed zoning districts comprising the land. Dependling on the situation
more than one bax may be indicated. If zoning remains unaffected mark the same as above in the “Current Zoning Districis” rable.

Proposed Zoning

A Agricultural District

SF-1 | One-Family Dwelling District

v~ | SF-2 | One-Family Dwelling District

SF-3 | One-Family Dwelling District

2F Two-Family Dwelling District

MF-1 | Multiple-Family Dwelling District-1

MF-2 | Multiple-Family Dwelling District-2

P Parking District

O Office District

NS | Neighborhood Service District

GR General Retail District

C Commercial District

HC | Highway Commercial

CA | Centrol Area District

I-1__ | Light Industrial District

I 2 Heavy Industrial District

Planned Development District

:— Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Ploce "X" or check mark in appropriate box indicating the propased use of the lond. Depending on the situation more than one bax may

be indicated.

Use of Land and Buildings

Housing Uses

One Family Detached Dwelling

One Family Attached Dwelling

Zero Lot Line Dwelling

Town Home

Two Family Dwelling

Multiple Family Dwelling

Boarding or Rooming House

Bed and Breakfast Inn

Hotel or Motel

HUD Code Manufactured Home

Industrialized Housing

Mobil Home

Pasricimn F



Subdivision Application Form

Use of Land and Buildings

Accessory And Incidental Uses

Accessory Building

Farm Accessory Building

Home Occupation

Off Street Parking Incidental to Main Use

Stable

Swimming Pool

Temporary Field Office or Consiruction Office

Utility And Services Uses Electrical Substation

Electrical Energy Generating Plant

Electrical Transmission Use

Fire Station

Gas Lines and Regulating Station

Public Building Shop or Yard of Local State or General Agency

Radio, Television, or Microwave Tower

Radio or Television Transmitting Station

Sewage Pumping Station

Sewage Treatment Plant

Telephone Business Office

Telephone Exchange, Switching Relay or Transmitting Station

Utility Line, Local

Utility Shops or Storage Yards or Buildings

Water Standpipe or Elevated Waler Storage

Water Reservoir, Well or Pumping Station

Water Treatment Plont

Paovicinn F



Subdlivision Application Form

Use of Land and Buildings

Recreational And Entertainment Uses

Amusement, Commercial

Amusement, Commercial

Country Club with Golf Course

Dance Hall or Night Club

Day Camp for Children

Drag Strip or Commercial Racing

Go Cart Track

Gun Range

Park or Playground

Play Field or Stadium

Rodeo Grounds

Swim or Tennis Club

Theater

Trailer Park - Recreational Vehicle Park

Educational And Institutional Uses

Art Gallery or Museum

Cemetery or Mausoleum

Church or Rectory

College, University or Private School

Community Center

Convent or Monastery

Fairgrounds or Exhibition Area

Fraternity, Sorority, Lodge or Civic Club

Home for Alcoholic, Narcotic or Psychiatric Patients

Hospital Acute Care

Hospital Chronic Care

Historical, Religious, Charitable or Philanthropic Nature

Kindergarten or Nursery

Library

Nursing Home or Residence for Aged

School, Business or Trade and

School, Public or Parochial

RPavsicinn F



Subdlivision Application Form

Use of Land and Buildings

Transportation Related Uses

Airport, Landing Field or Heliport

Bus Station or Terminal and

Mator Freight Terminal

Parking Lot Truck

Parking Lot Structure Commercial

Railroad Freight Terminal

Railroad Passenger Station

Railroad Track or Right-of-Way

Railroad Team Tracks

Automobile Service Uses

Auto Glass, Muffler or Seat Cover Shop

Auto Laundry

Auto Parts and Accessory Sales

Auto Parts and Accessory Sales

Auto Painting or Body Rebuilding Shop

Automobile Repair Garage

Gasoline or Fuel Service Station

New or Used Auto Sales in Structure

New or Used Auto Sales Qutdoor Lot

Motorcycle or Scooter Sales and Repair

Steam Cleaning or Vehicles or Machinery

Tire Retreading or Capping

Trailer, Cargo Sales or Rental

Wrecking or Auto Salvage Yard

Raovicimn F



Subdlivision Application Form

Use of Land and Buildings

Retail And Related Service Uses

Anlique Shop

Art Supply Store

Bakery or Confectionery Shop

Bank or Saving And Loan Office

Barber or Beauty Shop

Book or Stationery Shop

Camera Shop

Cleaning Shop or Laundry

Cleaning Laundromat

Clinic, Medical or Dental

Custom Personal Service Shop

Department Store or Discount Store

Drug Store or Pharmacy

Farmers Market

Florist Shop

Food Store

Furniture or Appliance Store

Garden Shop and Plant Sales

Handcraft and Art Objects Sales

Hardware Store or Hobby Shop Key Shop

Laboratory, Medical or Dental

Medical Appliances, Fitting, Sales or Rental

Mortuary

Offices, General Business or Professional

Office Showroom/Warehouse or Sales Facilities

Optical Shop or Laboratory

Pawn Shop

Pet Shop, Small Animals, Birds, and Fish

Private Club

Repair of Appliances, T.V., Radio and Similar Equipment

Restaurant or Cafeteria

Restaurant or Eating Establishment

Retail Shop, Apparel, Gift Accessory and Similarities

Sexually Oriented Establishment

Studio Decorator and Display of Art Objects

Studio Health Reducing or Similar Service

Studio, Photographer, Artist, Music, Drama, or Dance

Tool Rental

N

Raoviicimn F



Subdivision Application Form

Use of Land and Buildings

Trailer or RV Sales or Display

Variety Store or Other Retail Outlet Store

Veterinarian Office Only

Agricultural Types Uses

Farm or Ranch

Animal Pound

Animal Clinic or Hospital

Animal Clinic, Hospital or Kennel

Greenhouse or Plant Nursery

Commercial Type Uses

Bakery Wholesale

Building Material Sale

Cabinet and Upholstery Shop

Cleaning, Drying or Laundry Plant

Clothing or Similar Light Assembly Process

Contractors Storage or Equipment Yard

Heavy Machinery Sales, Storage or Repair

Lithographic or Print Shop

Maintenance and Repair Service for Buildings

Milk Depot, Dairy or Ice Cream Plant

Manufactured House or Industrialized Homes Sales and Display

Open Storage of Furniture, Appliances or Machinery, Etc.

Paint Shop

Petroleum Products, Storage and Wholesale

Plumbing Shop

Propane Storage and Distribution

Storage Warehouse

Trailer or Recreational Vehicle Sales or Display

Welding or Machine Shop

Wholesale Office Storage or Sales Facilities

Industrial Uses

Asphalt Paving Batching Plant

Concrete Batching Plant

Concrete Products Manufacture

Light Manufacturing

Sand and Gravel Storage

Sand, Gravel, Stone or Petroleum Exiraction

n Povicimn F



Subdiivision Application Form

Indlicote the utilify provider's name for the property in the spoce provided,

Utility Providers

Description of Service Name
Electrical Service Provider o S REW
Water Supplier - i
Sewage Disposal
Telephone Service
Cable TV Service
Gas Service
Refuse Pick-Up

- 1]

The signatures of the ownen(s) below indicate intention fo follow through with the platting/subdivision process.

Z—. /\ écoow érw{ Da:‘s//c //L

Owner’s Signdiure ' Owner's Neme(Printec))
Co-Owner’s Signaturs Co-Owner’s Name (Printed)) Dote
Co-Owner's Signoture Co-Owner'’s Name (Printed) Data

172 Pavicinn F



Subdivision Application Form

City of Farmersville Staff Only

(Applicant, do not mark in spaces below)

Description Response
zls;;i;e: :tfi c(;:ty Staff Worker Receiving . /Qm\q Nockees,
Fee Amount |\ oo ©°
Check Number L2
Date Received 2_\L-AL
City Receipt Number 0015278l
City Asset Account Number ——

17 Pavricinn F




3o
o™

' Mats 1:00:24 A D1 174

LAWYERS TITLE COMPANY GF LT190127-1801271500003
W&A 15-158VH

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:
Cody Gray

* 17155 County Road 605
Farmersville, TX 75442

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A N
YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF

INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT RS AN{INTEREST IN
REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR C IN E PUBLIC
RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUM OR DRIVER'S
LICENSE NUMBER.
THE STATE OF TEXAS
LL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF COLLIN

THAT |, JOHNNIE MAE LEE ( NNIE LEE), a single woman, (hereinafter
referred to as "grantor”) of the County o nd State of Texas, for and in consideration of the sum of
$10.00 and other valuable consid pald by the grantee herein named, the receipt of
whichis hereby acknowledged, OLD AND CONVEYED, and by these presents do GRANT,
SELL AND CONVEY unto RA pifl referred 1o as "grantee”), of the County of Collin, and State

of Texas, the following described-teal property in Collin County, Texas, to-wit:
(SEE EXHIBET A ., ACHED HERETO AND FOR ALL PURPOSES MADE A PART HEREOF)

THIS CONVEY \» %

istinig roadways or which may be used for road or street purposes.

. and apparent easements over or across subject property.

3.  Anyandalleaserments, restrictions, covenants, conditions and reservations of record, if any, applicable
to the herein conveyed property or any part thereof.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described premises, together with all and singular the rights

and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, unto the said grantee, grantee’s heirs and assigns forever;

Warranty Deed - Page 1
Kicmsesvih\Gray C fom Les AWAR DEED wnd



FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE
COMPANY

Commitment No.: 1901271500003

SCHEDULE A
{continued)

Legal description of land:

Sitvated in Collin County, Texas and in the City of Farmersville, and being a pari of the Marble Addition 1o
said Cily of Fermersville, described as follows: P

BEGINNING 40 feel West of the Norlhwest comer of a one acre lract deeded o D. E. Nea&q;f

THENCE WEST 210 feet to a stake; N _‘ oo

THENGE SOUTH 210 feel to a slake;
-\\“‘.‘ ~ _.“"""- ﬂ?’t
THENCE EAST 210 feet, a stake; N T
VR

THENCE NORTH 210 feet lo the place of beginning, o contain one acre of,

SAVE AND EXCEPT a lol 50 {eel by 210 leet sold off the West porti
dated May 6, 1948, executed by J. T. Gaddy and wife to J. H. Gre
Page 191, Deed Records of Colin Counly, Texas; and BEING the
trust recorded in Volume 212, Page 185, Collin County Deed 9 Tru

E E ACREAGE AND/OR SOUARE

NOTE: COMPANY DOES NOT REPRESENT THA
FOOTAGE CALCULATIONS ARE CORRECT, %

END DE SC

N
’ Ny

. Fileo ana wecorcea
g " Official Public Records
" Stacey Keap, County Clark
: Collln County, TEXAS
. 85/07/2016 11.00:21 any
. $34.00 OFOSTER
Ny ¢ 2015¢507000825530

@ @j;%

Form T-7: C

Tor Ve i, oy

TR P51+ 15-190127 1500002



Kenneth L. Maun
Tax Assessor\Collector
Ccllin County

2300 Bloomdale Road Ste. 2324
P.O. Box 8046
McKinney, TX 75071

Ph: 972-547-5020
Metro: 972-424-1460 ext. 5020

TAX CERTIFICATE FOR ACCOUNT : R1062002004F1 PAGE 1 OF 1

AD NUMBER: 1234211
GF NUMBER:
CERTIFICATE NO : 21922223

COLLECTING AGENCY

Collin County

2300 Bloomdale Road Ste. 2324
P.O. Box B046

McKinney TX 75071

REQUESTED BY
BOUNDARY SOLUTIONS INC

107 MCKINNEY ST
FARMERSVILLE TX 75442

DATE : 3/16/2016
FEE: $10.00

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
NEATHERY MARBLE (CFC), BLK 2,
LOT 4F

0000000 NEATHERY
0 ACRES

EROPERTY OWNER
GRAY CODY

17155 COUNTY ROAD 605
FARMERSVILLE TX 75442-8321

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT AFTER A CAREFUL CHECK OF THE TAX RECORDS, ALL TAXES DUE THE TAX
ASSESSOR COLLECTOR OF COLLIN COUNTY ON THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY HAVE BEEN PAID UP TO
AND INLCUDING THE CURRENT YEAR TAXES WITH ANY ABOVE LISTED EXCEPTIONS.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY TAX HAS/IS RECEIVING SPECIAL VALUATION BASED ON ITS USE, AND
ADDITIONAL ROLLBACK TAXES MAY BECOME DUE BASED ON THE PROVISIONS OF THE SPECIAL VALUATION.

SPTB RULE 155.40 (B) PARAGRAPH 6.

CURRENT VALUES

LAND MKT VALUE: $32,000.00 IMPROVEMENT : $0.00

AG LAND VALUE; $0.00 DEF HOMESTEAD: $0.00

APPRAISED VALUE: $32,000.00 LIMITED VALUE: $0.00

EXEMPTIONS:

LAWSUITS:

YEAR TAX UNIT LEVY PEN INT  DEFINT  ATTY AMOUNT DUE
2015 [COLLIN COLLEGE $oo0| soo0| sooo| $000[ s0.00 $0.00
2015 | Collin County $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2015 | FARMERSVILLE CITY $000| sooo| sooo| so000| s$0.00 $0.00
2015 | FARMERSVILLE ISD $000| $000| $000| $000| s000 $0.00

2015 SUB TOTAL $0.00

TOTAL CERTIFIED TAX DUE 3/2016 : $ 0.00

ISSUED TO : BOUNDARY SOLUTIONS INC

ACCOUNT NUMBER: R1062002004F 1

o,
CERTIFIED BY :

Collin County Property Tax Off




IV. Work Session

Page 37 of 64



IV. A. Consider, discuss and act upon the request from the City Council fo
review and update the Sign Ordinance

Page 38 of 64



Chapter 56 - SIGNS AND ADVERTISING'"’
Footnotes:

—(1)--

Secs. 56-111—56-133. - Reserved.

ARTICLE L. - IN GENERAL
Sec. 56-1. - Penalty.

Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon

conviction in the municipal court, shall be subject to a fine not to exceed the sum of $500.00 for each offense, and
cach and every day any such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, § 4, 10-9-2007)

(a)

(b)

Sec. 56-2. - Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to encourage aesthetically pleasing design, establish uniform standards for the
placement of signs, and provide minimum standards to safeguard life, health, property and the public welfare by
regulating and controlling the design, quality of materials, construction, location, electrification and maintenance
of all sign structures not located within a building.

The regulations of this chapter are not intended to authorize, nor shall they be deemed to permit, any violation
of the provisions of any Code provision, statute, rule or regulation.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 1-2, 10-9-2007)

Sec. 56-3. - Applicability.
The terms and conditions of this chapter shall apply to signs located within the corporate city limits and its

extraterritorial jurisdiction to the full extent permitted by and not otherwise prohibited by V.T.C.A., Local Government
Code ch. 216.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 1-1, 10-9-2007)

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

Sec. 56-4. - Sign permits.

Permit required. No sign, other than those signs allowed without a permit by sections 56-31 and 5654, shall be
erected, placed, attached, secured, altered or displayed on the ground, or to any building, or any structure, until
a permit for such sign has been issued by the building official. An application for a sign permit may be obtained
from the city.

Application. The city shall approve or deny an application for a sign permit within 30 days of the building
inspection division's receipt of the application. A sign permit will be issued if a proposed sign conforms to all
Code provisions.

Diagram of sign location. Upon request by the city, a diagram shall be provided showing the location of all signs
on the property or adjacent properties. Incorrect information on an application shall be grounds for denial or
revocation of a sign permit.

Not to issue for prohibited locations. No sign permit shall be issued under this section for any sign in a district
where signs are prohibited by Chapter 77, Zoning, as it currently exists or may be amended by ordinance,

Fees. The sign permit fee shall be a fee as established from time to time in the master fee schedule contained in
appendix A of this Code.

Interpretation and administration. The building official shall be responsible for interpreting and administering

Page 39 of 64



this section. The building official may revoke any permit for a sign issued in error.
(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 2-1, 10-9-2007)

Sec. 56-5. - Responsibility of compliance.

The permittee, owner, agent, or person having the beneficial use of a sign, the owner of the land or structure on
which the sign is localed, and the person erecting the sign are all subject to the provisions of this chapter.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 2-2, 10-9-2007)

Sec. 56-6. - Enforcement.

(8) Authority. The building official or his designee or such other person as may be appointed by the city manager is
hereby designated to be the city's sign inspector and is further authorized and directed to interpret and enforce
all the provisions of this chapter. For such purposes the sign inspector shall have the powers of a law enforcement
officer.

(b) Right of entry. Whenever necessary to make an inspection to enforce any of the provisions of this chapter, or
whenever there is reasonable cause to believe that there exists in any building or upon any premises any condition
or violation of this chapter which makes such building or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the sign
inspector may enter such building or premises at all reasonable times to inspect the same or to perform any duty
imposed by this chapter, provided that if such building or premises is occupied, he shall first present proper
credentials and request entry. If such building or premises is unoccupied, he shall first make a reasonable effort
to locate the owner or other persons having charge or control of the building or premises and request entry. If
such entry is refused or the owner or other persons having charge or control of the building or premises cannot
be located, the sign inspector shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law o secure entry.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 2-3, 10-9-2007)

Secs. 56-7—56-30. - Reserved.

ARTICLE II. - DEFINITIONS AND REGULATIONS
Sec. 56-31. - Definitions; sign regulations and requirements.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in
this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

A-frame sign means a temporary sign constructed of two pieces of wood, metal or other similar material
connecled at the top by hinges or similar devices and may collapse when the connecting devices are overextended or
the two pieces of wood, metal or other similar material are against one another.

(1) The maximum width allowed is four feet. The maximum height allowed is four feet. The maximum copy
area allowed is 16 square feet.

{2) A-frame signs are only allowed to be displayed during normal daytime business hours between 8:00 a.m.
and 5:00 p.m.

(3) A-frame signs are prohibited in the city's Central Area (CA) Zoning Districl. See Sandwich board for the
CA Zoning District.

{4) A sign permit is not required.

{5) A-frame signs must be located a minimum of four feet from any curb of any adjacent street. An A-frame
sign shall not be closer than 20 feet to another A-frame sign. A maximum of one A-frame sign may be
placed per business or tenant on the property where the A-freme sign is located. A- frame signs must
provide an unobstructed pedestrian clearance of at least four feet in width. An A-frame sign shall not be
placed in any manner that interferes with vehicular traffic or causes a potential hazard.

{6) An A-frame sign shall not be placed in any median. An A-frame sign shall not be placed within a utility or
right-of-way easement. An A-frame sign shall not be illuminated or contain any moving paris other than
the fasteners holding the faces of the A-frame sign together.

Abandoned or neglected sign.

Page 40 of 64



(1) The term "abandoned or neglected sign" means a:

a. Sign that is not maintained or has missing panels, letters, or characters, bumed out lights, rust, loose
or damaged parts, or has faded from its original color or advertises a product or service no longer
available or a business no longer in operation;

b.  Sign which is illegible, nonfunctional, in disrepair, or hazardous as a result of a lack of maintenance;
or

¢.  Previously nonconforming sign structure that has lost its lawful nonconforming status as a result of
abandonment or lack of use.

(2) Abandoned or neglected signs shall be considered a public nuisance and are prohibited in the city and its
extraterritorial jurisdiction. See Public nuisance,

Apartment sign means a temporary stake sign made of wood, metal or other similar material used to convey
information that relates to the operations of an apartment community or complex.

(1) An apartment sign shall not exceed six square feet in total area. The maximum height of an apartment sign
shall not exceed four feet.

(2) No sign permit is required.

(3) Apartment signs may be placed in the front yard of a property developed as an apartment complex no
earlier than Friday at 12:00 noon and shall be removed from the property no later than Sunday at 6:00 p.m.

(4) Apartment signs may not be installed on any public property or right-of-way area. Apartment signs shall
only be placed on the property for the apartment community to which it pertains. Apariment signs installed
within the front of a property shall not be placed closer than 60 feet from another apartment sign. Apartment
signs shall not be installed within 30 feet from a side property line.

Audible sign means any sign that emits music, talking, words, or other sound or amplification. Audible signs
are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Awning.

(1) The term "awning" means a retractable or nonretractable projection, shelter or structure of rigid or nonrigid
canvas, metal, wood, or other similar material, attached to the building, that extends above a window, door,
patio, or deck used as a shading device for windows or entryways, used as protection from the weather,
used as a decorative embellishment, or used for identity. For the purposes of this ordinance an awning is
not a canopy. See Canopy and canopy sign.

(2) Minimum height of the lowest part of an awning shall be seven feet above grade,

Awning sign means a permanens sign that is directly applied, attached or painted onto an awning that extends
above a window, door, patio, or deck used as a shading device for windows or entryways, intended for protection from
the weather or as a decorative embellishment, or used for identity. An awning sign is used (o advertise the name of
the business, hours of operation, business telephone number, business address, or website address.

{1} No building shall have both a wall sign and an awning sign on the same building face.
{2) A sign permit is required.

(3) The maximum height of an awning sign shall not exceed four feet. The width of an awning sign shall not
exceed 75 percent in length of any side of an awning.

(4) An awning sign shall only be permitted in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a nonresidential
zoning district.

(5) An awning sign shall be secure and may not swing, sway, or move in any manner. An awning sign shall
not contain any moving devices. See Canopy and canopy sign.

Balloons and other floating devices means a visible airtight, inflatable apparatus with a maximum size not to
exceed three square feet in total area in various shapes or designs made of latex, Mylar, or other similar material that
extends by, or is anchored to the ground by, a cord, rope, string, wire or other similar material.

(1) Balloons and all other floating devices are allowed for temporary events only. Temporary events include
business grand openings, festivals, fairs, tournaments, or other similar happenings.

(2) No sign permit is required.
(3) No person shall erect, maintain, or allow the installation of any floating devices anchored to the ground,

Page 41 of 64



any vehicle, structure or any other fixed object for the purpose of advertising or attracting attention to a
business, commodity, service, sale, or product, except as otherwise permitted in this section. See Special
event, special event signs, grand opening, grand opening signs, and wind devices.

Banner means a temporary single sign or a grouping of pennants having characters, letters, or illustrations
applied to plastic, cloth, canvas, or other light fabric or similar material, with the only purpose of such nonrigid
material being for background used to promole awareness of special events or as seasonal decoration. Banners will
include all flags or pennants that contain no names, initials, logos, insignia or similar items and are not national, state
or municipal flags, or the official flag of a public or private institution. A banner does not include a municipal banner.

(1) A sign permit is required for each display period lasting for up to a maximum of 30 calendar days. One
banner sign may be placed on a building for a maximum of 30 days or less, two times in a 12-month period.
Each suite within a retail development shall be considered a building and, therefore, shall be allowed to
erect a banner accordingly.

(2) Exemption. Religious organizations that temporarily operate in a schoo! or other nonreligious facility may
erect a banner no earlier than two hours before a worship service and remove the banner no later than two
hours after such worship service without the issuance of a sign permit.

(3) A banner shall be securely attached to the front, side or rear face of a building. A banner shall not face a
residential neighborhood, unless the site of the banner is separated from the residential neighborhood by a
major thoroughfare. However, banners are permitted only in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a
nonresidential zoning district.

{4) A banner may be erected during social or athletic events at a public park or other city-owned property
attached to pavilions, fences, vehicles, stakes, rails, or poles up to two hours prior to the start of the event
and shall be removed no later than one hour after the conclusion of the event.

(5) A banner shall not exceed 100 square feet in area. A banner shall be placed a minimum of nine feet
above grade at any pedestrian traveled way. Where a building wall is nine feet in height or
less, is adjacent to an approved parking surface, and is not a designated pedestrian walkway, one banner
shall be placed a minimum of five feet above the grade above the parking surface.

(6) Banners shall not be draped over vehicles.

Beacon, searchlight or skylight means a source of high-intensity light with one or more beams directed into the
atmosphere or any other point, or any light with one or more beams that rotate or move. Beacons, searchlights or
skylights are prohibited in the city except by written permission from the city council.

Billboard means a sign erected in the outdoor environment for the purpose of the display of commercial or
noncommercial messages not pertinent to the use of products sold or primarily manufactured on the premises, or the
sale or lease of the property on which it is displayed. Billboards include any of its support, frame or other
appurtenances. Billboards are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Building marker/memorial plaque/cornerstone means a sign indicating the name, date and information about the
building’s historical significance, which is cut into or made an integral part of a wall surface, or a wall-mounted or
freestanding plaque of bronze or other permanent material describing such information.

{1} No sign permit is required.
(2} This type of sign is not an address sign.

Building official means the city manager or his designee.

Canopy means a roof-like structure on a framework sheltering an area or forming a sheltered walkway to the
entrance of a building. For the purposes of this article a canopy is not an awning. See Awning and awning sign.

Canopy sign means a sign that is applied, attached, painted or affixed on a canopy or other roof-like cover over
gasoline fuel pumps, vacuum areas at car detail facilities, or other areas where services are provided to a patron in a
vehicle intended for protection from the weather or as a decorative embellishment.

{1) A canopy sign may contain only the business's name or logo on the canopy band.
{2) Canopy signs may only be erected on the sides of the canopy band that face a public street.

{3) A sign permit is required.

{(4) Canopy signs may not exceed 15 square feet in size. Canopy signs must be attached directly to or painted
on the exterior face of the canopy band and shall not project more than 18 inches from the canopy band.
Only the canopy band may be illuminated, not the entire canopy. Canopy signs attached or applied to a

Page 42 of 64



canopy shall not extend above or below the canopy band. See Awning sign.

Canopy sign attachments means accessory supplemental signs attached above or below a canopy, commonly
used in conjunction with a wall sign. Canopy sign attachments provide the name of the business.

(1) A sign permit is required. Structural drawings, as required by the building official, sealed by a licensed
engineer must be submitted with the permit application.

(2) Canopy sign attachments shall only suspend from or extend above the edge of a pedestrian canopy. Canopy
sign attachments installed for pedestrian display located and attached on the underside of a pedestrian
canopy shall be centered.

(3) Canopy sign attachments shall have a maximum height of 12 inches. Suspended or extended awning sign
attachments shall not alternate up-and-down at a business's storefront. Suspended canopy sign attachments
suspended over a pedestrian canopy shall maintain a minimum nine- fool clearance from pedestrian grade
measured from the lowest hanging portion of the attachment. Canopy sign attachments, in the Central Area
Zoning District, suspended over a pedestrian canopy shall maintain a minimum seven-foot clearance from
pedestrian grade measured from the lowest hanging portion of the attachment.

(4) Canopy sign attachments shall not be used in conjunction with a canopy sign. Only one type of canopy
sign attachment shall be used per storefront.
Central Area (CA) Zoning District.

{1) The area consists of the historic downlown area as established by Chapter 77, Zoning, as it currently exists
or may be amended by ordinance, and as indicated on the city zoning map.

{2) All signs for the Central Area (CA} Zoning District shall be regulated according to the provisions of this
chapter. Refer to section 56-53 regarding signs in the Central Area Zoning District and see section 56-54.

Changeable copy sign.

(1) The term "changeable copy sign" means a freestanding sign or wall-mounted sign, with manually
interchangeable plastic letters and symbols, communicating information to the public, such as bulletin
boards, marquees and the like. A changeable copy sign is usually secondary to and part of the sign area of
a larger freestanding sign for which a sign permit is required.

{2) Ifthe changeable copy sign is to be the primary sign, it must meet the sign requirements as outlined in this
chapter. See Monument sign, pylon sign, wall sign, and electronic message center,

Church and civic organizations sign means signs identifying groups, such as churches or civic organizations.
These signs shall be regulated according to the provisions of this article.

Cloud buster balloon and air devices means any visible airtight or air flow-through, inflatable apparatus that
exceeds one square foot in total area made of latex, Mylar, or other similar material that extends higher than ten feet
into the sky which extends by, or is anchored to the ground by, a cord, rope, string, wire, or other similar material. A
cloud buster balloon or air device is commonly used to attract passersby/patrons to a location having a promotion,
sale, or other function. Cloud buster balloons, blimps, and other air devices are allowed for temporary special events
only. No sign permit is required.

Code enforcement officer means the building official or other designated authority, appointed by the city
manager, charged with the administration and enforcement of this chapter.

Commercial real estate sign (CRES) means an on-site, temporary sign made of wood, metal or similar material
approved by the building official that pertains to the sale or lease of the commercial property where the sign is located.
A CRES is a vertical framework consisting of one or more uprights supported by the ground. A CRES generally
advertises the name of a building or property for sale or lease, property owner name, realtor information, telephone
number, zoning information, and other information relating to the sale or lease of nonresidential property.

(1) A CRES shall not exceed 32 square feet in area. A CRES shall not exceed eight feet in height. The
maximum width of a CRES shall not exceed four feet.

(2) A V-shape sign is not a CRES.
(3) A sign permit is required.

(4) A CRES requires removal within ten days after the sale or lease of a property or business.

(8) A CRES shall be located no closer than 15 feet to any property line. A maximum of one CRES per property
shall be placed on a lot. For a property with more than 500 feet of single street frontage, more than one
CRES is allowed, provided that each CRES is spaced a minimum of 200 feet from other signs.

Page 43 of 64



Conforming sign means a sign that is lawfully in place on a tract of land which complies with all regulations of
this chapter.

Construction {(project development) sign means any temporary sign identifying the property owner, architect,
contractor and engineer, landscape architect, opening dates, decorator or financiers engaged in the construction or
improvement of the premises on which the sign is located. A construction sign is generally constructed of wood, metal
or other similar materials. A construction sign is a vertical framework consisting of one or more uprights supported
by the ground.

(1) A construction sign may include zoning information and advertise residential builders selling homes within
a subdivisien.
(2) Inno case shall a construction sign contain information that pertains to off-premises uses.

(3) A sign permit is required.

(4) A construction sign must be removed when 95 percent of the buildings/homes/units in the commercial
project or subdivision have been issued a certificate of occupancy.

(5) The construction sign shall be installed no closer than §5 feet to any property line. The minimum distance
between a construction sign on one site and a construction sign on another construction site is 200 feet.

(6) A construction sign installed on a lot where a conltractor requests a final inspection must be removed
prior to the final inspection and issuance of a certificate of occupancy.

(7) The maximum area of a construction sign is 96 square feet. The maximum height of a construction sign
is 16 feet.

(8) A maximum of one construction sign is allowed along a major street frontage per subdivision. When a
subdivision has more than one major thoroughfare, one construction sign may be placed on each major
thoroughfare. See Subdivision entrance sign,

Copy means letters, characters, illustrations, logos, graphics, symbols, writing or any combination thereof,
designed to communicate information of any kind, or to advertise, announce or identify a person, entity, business,
business product, or to advertise the sale, rental or lease of premises.

Copy area means the area within the sign containing any copy, including the area between separaie lines of text
and the area between text and any symbol, sign, logo or graphic, as well as the area between any symbols, signs, logos
or graphics.

Decorative display means a flag or banner that contains no name, initials, logos, insignia or similar items and
does not represent a government or private organization.

(1) Decorative displays are not signs.
(2) Decorative displays shall not protrude over property lines,

Developed property means a nonresidential property for which a certificate of occupancy has been issued by the
building official to occupy a building on the property, or a residential property for which a certificate of final
acceptance has been issued by the city.

Dilapidated means any surface element, background, or support of any sign that has finished materials that are
missing, broken, bent, cracked, decayed, dented, harmful, hazardous, illegible, leaning, splintered, ripped, torn,
twisted, or unsightly.

Directional sign means any sign relating solely to internal pedestrian and vehicular traffic circulation within a
complex or project without any form of advertising.

Electronic message center means any sign composed of lights, LEDs, or other form of illumination that displays
a message or picture. An electronic message center is usually secondary to and part of the sign area of a larger
freestanding sign for which a sign permit is required. Electronic message center signs shall be permitted subject to the
applicable provisions within the zoning districts in which the sign is located as well as the following additional
requirements:

(1} An electronic message center sign shall not exceed 50 square feet in area. If an electronic message center
is secondary to, incorporated into, or a component part of another type of sign, the fact that an electronic
message center sign is so included shall not act to permit the type of sign of which it is a part to be enlarged
beyond the dimensions and sign area allowed for the other type of sign. For example, the incorporation of
an electronic message center into a "projecting sign,” defined herein-below, shall not act o increase the
allowable maximum area of a projecting sign beyond 12 square feet.

Page 44 of 64



(2)

(3)

(4)
C)

(6)

{7)

@)

Electronic message center signs shall display static images for a period of at least eight seconds. Electronic
message signs shall not be animated, flash, travel, blink or fade. Electronic message signs may scroll from
one image to the next image provided that the scrolling process is completed within two seconds and
provided further that the images scrolied from and to remain static for a period of at least eight seconds.
Otherwise, electronic message signs shall transition instantaneously from one static image to another static
image. Rotary beacon lights, flashing lights, strobe lights, or similar devices shall not be attached to, nor
be incorporated in, any sign.

An electronic message center sign shall not exceed a brightness level of 0.3 foot-candles above ambient
light as measured by the guidelines below:

a. At least 30 minutes past sunset, use a foot-candle melter 1o record the ambient light reading for the
area. This reading is performed while the electronic message center sign is off or displaying all black
copy.

b. Take a reading using foot-candle meter at five feet above grade and 45 feet from the electronic
message center sign.
The meter shall be aimed directly at the electronic message center sign.
Turn the electronic message center sign on and illuminate entirely in white or red.

e. Take areading using a meter at five feet above grade and 45 feet from the electronic message center
sign.

f.  The meter shall be aimed directly at the electronic message center sign.

g. Ifthe difference between the two readings taken above is 0.3 foot-candles or lower, then the electronic
message center sign is in compliance. If the result is greater than 0.3 foot-candles, the electronic

message center sign is oul of compliance and must be adjusted to meet standards or turned off until
compliance can be mel.

h.  All measurements shall be taken in foot-candles.
Letters shall be no less than four inches in height,

Exception: Temporary signs required by government agencies for road and street repairs, public
notifications, traffic control and similar activities.

In all zoning districts, electronic message center signs shall come equipped with automatic dimming
technology, which automatically adjusts the sign's brightness based on ambient light.

Electronic message center signs have previously been prohibited in the city. Notwithstanding that
prohibition, a few electronic message signs have been installed with or without permits. Electronic message
signs that have been in continuous use for at least six months prior to the adoption of this ordinance that
comply with the requirements of subsection (2) will be considered a lawful nonconforming sign, and may
continue to be used for their current purpose and in their current dimensions only.

Any change, upgrade, or retrofit of the previously existing electronic message center sign and/or sign
cabinet shall require full compliance with the requirements of this provision.

Erect or install means to build, construct, attach, hang, place, suspend, affix, display, apply, assemble or place
in any manner upon including, but not limited to, the exterior of a building or structure.

Exempt means a sign permit is not a requirement; however, compliance with all other Code provisions is

required.

Flag or flagpole means a piece of fabric or other flexible material, attached to a ground-supported staff on one
end, used as a symbol of a nation, state, political subdivision, or organization.

(1)
(2)
(3)

No sign permit is required.

A flag and its ground-supported staff shall be located on private property behind the property line,

At a property that contains a building with less than four floors, the maximum height of a ground- supported
flagpole shall be 40 feet measured from the ground, with the maximum area of the flag not to exceed 60
square feet in area. At a nonresidential property that contains a building with

four floors or more above ground, the maximum height of a flagpole shall be 60 feet measured from the
ground, with the maximum area of a flag not to exceed 96 square feet in area.

Page 45 of 64



{4) A maximum of four flags or flagpoles may be located on a property.

{5) A flag not displayed on a ground-supported staff shall meet the permit and display requirements of a
banner. See Banner.

{6) Temporary flags for special interest groups {(e.g., schools, Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, and the like) may be
placed at public parks during social and athletic events.

Flashing sign means any sign that incorporates the use of a pulsating, blinking, revolving or rotating light source,
including a light source that changes or alternates the color of the light in sequence. Flashing signs are prohibited in
the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction. See Illuminated signs.

For sale, for rent, for lease or realtor open house signs means a sign that advertises the availability for sale, rent
or lease of a tract of land, a structure, or portions of a structure.

(1) No permit is required.

(2) Such signs are allowed in the right-of-way, a minimum three feet from the back of the curb, but not
allowed in the median.

(3) Maximum sign area is six square feet. Maximum height is three feet. Maximum number of signs is one
builder sign, one realtor sign and one open house sign.

Freestanding sign means any type of sign supported by structures that are placed on or anchored in the ground,
structurally independent of any building or other structure, and intended to be permanent. A sign permit is required.
See Monument, pole, or pylon signs.

Garage sale sign means an on-site temporary stake sign used to advertise a garage sale, yard sale, or estate sale
at an occupied residential property that has obtained a certificate of occupancy.

(1) No permit is required.
(2) Garage sale signs shall be located only on the private property of the residence having the garage sale.

(3) Garage sale signs shall not be placed on a vehicle, fence, pole, tree, median, or railing, Garage sale signs
shall not be balloons, wind devices or other types of signs, except stake signs, unless they meet the
definition and requirements for that type of sign.

(4) A garage sale sign shall not exceed six square feet in area. The maximum height of a garage sale sign
shall not exceed four feet.

Grade means the ground elevation located at the base of a sign.

Graffiti means pictures, words or slogans, images, or other artwork painted, drawn, scratched, carved, cut or
applied in any other manner to exterior walls, fences, structures, vehicles, stone, statues, buildings, or other items in
public view. Graffiti includes the illegal or unauthorized defacing of a building, wall, or other edifice or object by
painting or otherwise marking it with words, pictures, symbols, advertising, logos, relations with a group, indecent or
vulgar images or offensive language. Graffiti is prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Grand opening and grand opening sign mean a commemoration that promotes the opening of a new business
and the sign commemorating such grand opening, respectively.

{1} A grand opening sign shall be permitted within 180 days of the issuance of a certificate of occupancy from
the building official. Grand openings occurring more than 180 days after the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy require approval from the building official.

{2) A grand opening sign may only be located at the business that received a certificate of occupancy from
the building official.

{3) The period for which a grand opening sign may be permitted shall not exceed 14 consecutive days in
length,

Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangement means a visible airtight, inflatable apparatus with a maximum
size not to exceed three square feet in total area, in various shapes or designs, made of latex, Mylar, or other similar
material that extends by, or is anchored to the ground by, a cord, rope, string, wire or other similar material. Grand
opening balloon arrangements are balloons tied, twisted, or connected in such a manner to design creative figures,
shapes, crescents, or other displays.

(1) Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements may not exceed 20 feet in height.

(2) No sign permit is required,

Page 46 of 64



(3)

(4)

(5)

Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall only be displayed during a grand opening at a
business. Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements require removal within two hours after the
conclusion of the grand opening event.

Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall only be displayed within 20 feet of the public
entrance to the business.

Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall not be placed or displayed in front of or at other
businesses. Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall not be attached to parking signs, bicycle
stands, benches, trees, fences, poles, railings, vehicles, existing signage, display items, or other structures,
or placed in required parking spaces. Grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall not block
pedestrian or vehicular visibility or cause a safety hazard.

Highway Commercial (HC) Zoning District.

(1)

@)

The area as established by Chapter 77, Zoning, as it currently exists or may be amended by ordinance, and
as indicated on the city zoning map.

All signs for the Highway Commercial (HC) Zoning District shall be regulated according to the provisions
of this chapter. See section 56-54.

HOA-neighborhood sign (HOA-NS) means a temporary stake sign used to convey residential subdivision board
meetings, announcements, or other subdivision-related events 1o residents within the subdivision.

(M
()
(3)

No sign permil is required.
An HOA-NS shall be located on private property within the subdivision.

An HOA-NS shall not be located along any major thoroughfare or street arlery outside of the subdivision
screcning wall or perimeter barrier, An HOA-NS shall not exceed six square feet in area. The maximum
height of an HOA-NS shall not exceed four feet.

Home improvement sign means an onsite temporary stake sign that advertises the name, telephone number,
website address, or type of construction being performed on the property, such as a roof, fence, pool, paint, landscape,
or other home improvement contractor.

m
(@)

(3

No sign permit is required.

A home improvement sign shall be removed within 15 days of being initially installed or when the home
improvement work is completed, whichever occurs first. A home improvement sign shall be located only
on the lot at which the home improvement is occurring.

A home improvement sign shall not be erected on private property closer than ten feet from the edge of
any street pavement or designated roadway. A home improvement sign shall not exceed six square feet in
area. A home improvement sign shall not exceed four feet in height. A maximum of one home improvement
sign shall be erected on a lot.

Homebuilder directional signs means a temporary sign which directs pedestrian or vehicular traffic to a
particular home development or residential subdivision.

(1)
@

(3)

4)
(5)

(6)

An annual permit is required.
A homebuilder directional sign may not be closer than 100 feet or more than 150 feet back from major
intersections.

Homebuilder directional signs are allowed in the right-of-way a minimum of three feet from the back of
the curb.

Homebuilder directional signs are not allowed in the median.

Individual builder signs shall be spaced at least 100 feet apart. Homebuilder directional signs are allowed
to be displayed from 12:00 noon Friday until 12:00 noon on the following Monday, with the following
exceptions: from 12:00 noon Thursday until 12:00 noon Tuesday when a Friday or Monday falls on New
Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July or Christmas.

Maximum 235 signs per builder. Maximum sign area is six square feet. Maximum height is three feet.

Human sign means a sign held by or attached to a human being who stands or walks on the ground, on private
propetty, at a business location.

(1)

No sign permit is required.

Page 47 of 64



(2)

(3)

(4)

A human sign includes a person dressed in costume, both for the purpose of advertising or otherwise
drawing attention to an individual, business, commodity, service, activity or product on the premises where
the human sign is located.

Human signs may not be off-premises from where a promotion, sale, event or the like takes place. Podiums,
risers, stilts, vehicles, roofs, or other structures or devices shall not support a human sign.

Human signs may be displayed 24 hours each and every continuing day until the promotion, sale, special
event, or the like has ended.

Illuminated sign means a sign designed or made that consists of lights, LEDs, or other form of illumination that
displays a message or picture that does not scroll, fade, blink, flash, travel, or use any other means that does not provide
constant illumination. See Electronic message center signs.

Impounded sign means a sign that is legally removed by a city-authorized official, inspector, officer, other city
employees or city-authorized persons in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(1

(2)

Impounded signs may be recovered by the owner within 15 days from the date of impoundment by paying
a fee as established from time to time in the master fee schedule as contained in appendix A of this Code.

Illegal signs removed from public property, including the city's right-of-way, park property or other city-
maintained area, may be immediately disposed of by the city in any manner it shall elect. See Public
nuisance.

Inflatable device sign (IDS) means a sign manufactured of plastic, cloth, canvas or other flexible or light fabric,
inflated with air. An IDS only brings attention 1o a business, advertises the opening dales, sale of items offered or sold,
date of sale, name of business, telephone number, or website information of a business.

(1)
(2)

(3

(4)
(5

(6)
0

(8)

(9)

An IDS shall be secured directly to, and not suspended or floating from, the ground.

An IDS shall not be placed on a roof, canopy, parking garage, or awning, or suspended or floating from
any building or garage.

The maximum height of an IDS shall not exceed 30 feet. One banner may be applied to an IDS. A banner
applied to an IDS shall not count toward the allotted number of banners during a calendar year. The
maximurn area of a banner applied to an IDS shall not exceed 48 square feet.

An IDS shall not be installed within 200 feet from another IDS measured in a straight line in any direction.
Cloud buster balloons, blimps, wind devices or any similar type of apparatuses are not an IDS. See Wind
device.

A sign permit is required.

One IDS may be erected on a lot for not more than three 14-day periods per calendar year. A business can
only display one IDS at a time. In the case of multiple businesses or tenants located on a single lot, each
business is allowed to erect an IDS on the lot for not more than three 14-day periods per calendar year,
provided that not more than one IDS is installed along any street frontage at the same time. One IDS per
street frontage may be installed each time.

An DS shall not be located in required parking places, or driveways that provide access to parking spaces
or fire lanes, nor shall any IDS or its securing devices encroach into a right-of-way.

IDSs are only permitted within a nonresidential zoning district,

Instructional/informational sign means a sign whose sole purpose is to provide instruction, information, or
direction to the general public that is essential to the health, safety, and public welfare of the community.

(1

2

An instructional/informational sign shall contain no other message, copy, announcement, or decoration
other than the essential instruction, information or direction, and shall not advertise or otherwise draw
attention to an individual, business, commodity, service, activity, or product. Such signs shall include, but
are not limited to, a sign identifying a property address, street address, restrooms, public telephones,
handicap parking spaces, reserved parking spaces, freeze warning, no trespassing, no dumping, no
loitering, no soliciting, beware of warning, water resource information, neighborhood watch informational,
lock/take and hide informational, construction entrance or exit signage.

Instructional/informational signs erected by the city, local, federal or state govemments for the purpose of
public instruction, warnings or other similar hazards, street or highway designation, traffic control and
similar purposes incidental to public interests shall be considered an instructional/informational sign. An
instructional/informational sign will include a sign of a warning, directive or instruction erected by a public

Page 48 of 64



utility company that operates under a franchise agreement with the city or signs required by federal, state
or other local authorities.

(3) A sign permit is not required,
(4) There are no restrictions.

(8) The maximum area of an instructional/informational sign is 16 square feet.

Lights means any form of light sources or lumens, whether by electromagnetic radiation, flame, reflection, or
any other form of lumens, that act upon the retina of the eye and optic nerve that makes sight possible.

Logo means any design, insignia or other marking of a company or product which is used in advertising to
identify the company, business or product.

Lot means an individual parcel or tract of land recorded by a plat or deed in the county clerk's office.
Lot line means a line dividing one lot from another, or from a street or place,

Menu board sign means a sign erected in conjunction with a use that incorporates a drive-thru or drive- in and
generally used to provide service or product options and pricing for patrons who remain in a vehicle.

(1) Sign permit. A sign permit is required.

(2) Restrictions. A menu board sign is permitted only in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a
noaresidential zoning district. The minimum front building setback is 25 feet from the property line.

(3) Drive-thru menu board sign. A menu board sign shall be supported from the grade to the bottom of the
sign having or appearing to have a solid base. The design, materials, and finish of a menu board sign shall
match those of the buildings on the same lot. One menu board sign is permitted per drive-thru use on a lot.
The maximum sign area of a menu board sign is 60 square feet. The maximum height of a menu board sign
is six feet.

(4) Drive-thru pre-order sign. A drive-thru pre-order sign shall be supported from the grade to the bottom of
the sign having or appearing to have a solid base. The design, materials, and finish of a drive-thru pre-
order sign shall match those of the buildings on the same lot. One drive-thru preorder sign is permitted at
the entrance of the drive-thru lane on a lot. The maximum sign area of a drive-thru pre-order sign is 24
square feet in area. The maximum height of a drive-thru preorder sign is six feet.

(5) Drive-in menu board sign. A drive-in menu board sign shall be supported from the grade to the bottom of
the sign having or appearing to have a solid base. [f the drive-in stalls are covered by a canopy, the drive-
in menu board signage may be attached directly to the canopy support columns, The design, materials, and
finish of a drive-in menu board sign shall match those of the buildings on the same lot. One drive-in menu
beard sign is permitted per ordering station. The maximum sign area of a drive-in menu board sign is nine
square feet. The maximum height of a drive-in menu board sign is six feet.

Mobile advertisement sign means an operable or inoperable vehicle with illuminated or nonilluminated panels,
other devices, or appendages used (o advertise, promote or draw attention to products, services, events, or other similar
purposes, designed or intended to be relocated from time to time. A mobile advertisement includes signs on wheels or
mobile structures such as, among other things, trailers, skids, banners, tents or other mobile structures. The primary
purpose of a mobile advertisement sign is advertising and it is not used in the daily function of the business it
advertises.

(1) A mobile advertisement is prohibited in the cily and its extraterritorial jurisdiction for longer than 20
minutes in a 24-hour day.

{2} A mobile advertisement sign shall only be driven on public streets in the city and its extraterritorial
Jjurisdiction. A mobile advertisement sign is not a vehicle sign. See Portable sign and vehicle sign.

Model home sign means a sign used to identify a builder or contractor model house that is open to the public for
inspection by customers and located within a residential district. A model home sign provides a builder's name,
corporate logo, hours of operation, website information, and telephone number.

(1} A sign permit is required.

{2) A model home sign is permitted on a lot that has been issued a building permit for construction of a
residential dwelling or temporary sales trailer. A model home sign is a vertical framework consisting of
one or more uprights supported by the ground. One model home sign is allowed per residential lot.

(3) The minimum front setback of a model home sign shall be 15 feet from the property line. The minimum

Page 49 of 64



side or rear setback of a model home sign shall be ten feet from the property line. The maximum area of a
model home sign shall not exceed 32 square feet. The maximum height of a model home sign shall not

exceed ten feet. The average finished grade of the lot shall not be altered to increase the height of a model
home sign.

(4) Model home signs shall not contain neon or prohibited lights. Exterior lighting must meet the requirements
of the light and glare standards as defined in Chapter 77, Zoning, as it currently exists or may be amended
by ordinance.

Monument sign means a freestanding sign having a low profile, supported from the grade to the bottom of the
sign having, or appearing to have, a solid base made of stone, concrete, metal, brick, routed wood planks or beams, or
similar materials equivalent to the architecture of the building or complex.

(1) A sign permit is required.
(2) Maximum height for lots five acres or less is eight feet including base, measured from grade.
(3) Maximum sign area for lots five acres or less is 64 square feet.

(4) Maximum height for lots five acres or more is ten feet including base, measured from grade.
{5) Maximum sign area for lots five acres or more is 150 square feet.

(6) Setback is 15 feet from the curbline. If no curbline exists, the setback shall be 15 feet from the property
line.

(7) Number of signs allowed is no more than one monument sign per lot, with the following exceptions:

a. For lots over five acres abutting a state highway which is not classified as a business route: Minimum
200 feet separation between other allowed permanent freestanding signs on the same lot.

b. For lots over 20 acres: Minimum 300 feet separation between other allowed permanent freestanding
signs on the same lot. See Pylon sign.

Moving sign means any sign, sign appendages or apparatus designed or made to move freely in the wind or
designed or made to move by an electrical or mechanical device. Moving signs or any sign appendage that moves are
prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Municipal banner means a temporary sign having characters, letters, or illustrations applied to plastic, cloth,
canvas, or other light fabric or sirnilar material, with the only purpose of such nonrigid material being for background
used by the city, either acting alone or in cooperation with another person or entity, to promote the city, aid in economic
development or economic activity in the city, promote citizenry and good will, promote awareness of happenings in
the city, promote municipal-related places, activities, or events, or promote municipal-related information or an event
or similar happening determined by the city to directly relate to the city's objectives in speaking on its own property.
A municipal banner includes ornamentations and seasonal decorations.

(1) Written permission from the building official is required. There is no time restriction.

(2) A municipal banner may be erected on any city-owned property including, but not limited to, pavilions,
fences, walls, vehicles, poles and light poles, or any other structure or apparatus approved by the building
official.

(3) Municipal banners shall not be faded, tattered or torn.

Mural means noncommercial pictures or ariwork painted, drawn or applied on the exterior walls that do not
depict or contain advertising, logos, or images of a product or service offered or sold on premises or off premises.

(1) Murals shall not be used to advertise products or services of any kind offered or sold off premises or on
premises. Any form of wording or logo shall be of secondary nature to a mural.

(2) A sign permit is required.

(3} A detailed drawing of the proposed mural shall be submitted to the city with the sign permit application
for review to determine conformity with all applicable city, state and federal laws, statutes and ordinances.

(4) The mural shall be executed in conformity to the detailed drawing of the proposed mural that is
submitted to the city with the sign permit application.

{5) A mural shall be located above grade and below a roof and only within a nonresidential zoning district.
Murals shall not be applied to a roof or other similar cover of a building or structure. The maximum area
of a mural shall not exceed the length or height of the exterior wall on which it is painted, drawn or applied.

Page 50 of 64



A mural shall not face a residential neighborhood unless separated by a major thoroughfare.
(6) Murals are permitted only in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a nonresidential zoning district.

(7) Murals shall not contain any matter that is obscene, or which offends the public morals, or that is
inappropriate viewing material for anyone under the age of 18 years including, but not limited to:
a. Nudity or a state of nudity, specified anatomical areas and specified sexual activities, as those terms
are defined in this section;

b. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, buttocks, or that portion of the female
breast below the top of the areola; and

€. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid stage whether covered or uncovered,

Nameplate sign or address sign means a sign showing only the name and address of the owner or occupant of
the premises with a maximum area of two square feet. No sign permit is required.

Neon tubing means a discharge tube containing neon that ionizes and glows with various colors when electric
current is sent through it.

Nonconforming sign means any sign and its supporting structure that does not conform to all or any portion of
this chapter and was in existence and lawfully erected prior to the effective date of the ordinance from which this
chapter is derived, and was in existence and lawfully located and used in accordance with the provision of any prior
ordinances applicable thereto, or which was considered lepally nonconforming thereunder, and has since been in
continuous or regular use, or was used on the premises at the time it was annexed into the city and has since been in
regular and continuous use. A nonconforming sign may be maintained.

(1) The right to continue all nonconforming signs shall cease and such sign shall be removed whenever:

a. An approved application for a certificate of occupancy has been submitted or a certificate of
occupancy is issued as provided in Chapter 77, Zoning, and a sign is associated with such occupancy.
This provision applies to on-premises advertising signs only.

b. A sign is altered, moved or relocated without a permit pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.
c. A sign leans such that an angle between the sign and the ground is 45 degrees or less.

{2} If a structurally sound nonconforming sign is destroyed in part or in whole by fire, storm, wind, or any
other uncontrollable event, the sign may be rebuilt to its original state unless the cost to repair exceeds 60
percent of the replacement cost on the date of damage. If a nonconforming sign is destroyed and removed
by any other means, the sign must be repaired or replaced in compliance with this article.

(3} Signs designated by official action of the city as having special historic or architectural significance are
exempt from subsection (1) of this definition.

(4) A nonconforming general business sign situated on property purchased by the city may be relocated
provided the sign is removed or rebuilt to conform to this chapter within one year by the sign owner or
responsible party. Relocation is limited to the same physical sign with no increase in height, area, or change
in other physical attributes. For purposes of this provision, a property acquisition initiated by the city does
not include a right-of-way dedicated in the subdivision plat process. See Public nuisances.

Notice, as required by this chapter, shall be sufficient if it is effected by personal delivery or registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, by the United States Postal Service or by posting notice at the premises.

Official sign means a sign erected by a governmental agency within its territorial jurisdiction for the purpose of
carrying oul an official duty ar responsibility and including, but not limited to, traffic signs and signals, zoning signs,
and street signs. Special lighting or banners celebrating seasonal or civic events sponsored or endorsed by the city
council may be official signs.

Off-premises or off-location sign means a sign that advertises, promotes, or pertains to a business, person,
organization, activity, event, place, service, product, etc., at a location other than where the business, person,
organization, activity, event, place, service, product, etc., is located. Off-location and off- premises signs are prohibited
in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

On-premises or on-location means the property or location on which a business, person, organization, activity,
event, place, service, product, etc., is located.

Owner means the owner of the sign, land or structure, or person responsible for erecting, altering, replacing,
relocating, or repairing the sign or structure,

Page 51 of 64



Permanent sign means any attached or detached sign placed in a fixed location or affixed to a permanent
structure of a maximum height and area.

Pole sign means a sign erected on a vertical framework consisting of one or more uprights supported by the
ground. Pole signs are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction. See Monument signs, pylon signs, or
wall signs.

Political sign means a sign that relates to the election of a person to a public office, a political party, or a matter
to be voted upon at an election called by a public body or contains primarily a political message.

(1) No sign permit required.
(2) Political signs shall be located only on private property with the consent of the property owner.

(3) A political sign shall not be erected closer than ten feet from the edge of the street pavement, located on
any public property, or within a designated easement or right-of-way. Political signs shall not exceed eight
feet in height measured from the ground to the highest point of the sign. Political signs shall not exceed 36
square feet in area. Political signs shall not be illuminated. Political signs shall not contain any moving
elements or parts. Political signs shall not be dilapidated or cause a hazard.

Portable sign means any sign with illuminated or nonilluminated panels, other devices, or appendages used to
advertise, promote or draw attention to products, services, events, or other similar purposes, designed or intended to
be relocated from time to time, whether or not it is permanently attached to a building or structure. Portable signs
include signs on wheels or portable or mobile structures such as, among other things, trailers, skids, banners, tents or
other portable structures,

{1) Portable signs are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction, except as specifically allowed
by other sections and subsections of this chapter.

{2) A portable sign is not a vehicle sign. See Mobile advertisement sign and vehicle sign,

Prohibited lights means lights that blink, strobe, flash, fade, scroll, or are anything other than stationary or static,
that attract the attention of the general public or cause light pollution or light trespass.

{1) Prohibited lights placed in any manner where the light is visible from the exterior of a business or other
nonresidential use facility are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

(2) Exception. Federal, state and municipal authorized emergency devices or apparatuses, emergency vehicles,
utility repair vehicles, fire and building code light devices for emergency or security purposes, or other
required lighting for public safety purposes are not prohibited and must comply with all applicable Code
provisions.

Projecting sign means a sign attached to and projecting out from a building face or wall, generally at a right
angle to the building. A projecting sign advertises the name, telephone number, street address, or website information
of a business,

(1) A sign permit is required.

(2} A projecting sign is permitted only in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a nonresidential district.
When a projecting sign is constructed over a pedestrian sidewalk, a minimum of a nine- foot clearance
shall be provided between the grade of the sidewalk and the lowest portion of a projecting sign.

(3) A projecting sign shall not extend above a building wall.
(4) The maximum area of a projecting sign is 12 square feet.

Property line means the line denoting the limits of legal ownership of property.

Public nuisance means any sign or similar device erected, constructed or placed in a manner that constitutes a
traffic hazard, causes annoyance either to a limited number of persons or the general public, or causes a hazard or
dangerous condition, any sign erected or constructed in or over any public right-of- way, or any prohibited or
noncompliant sign.

(1) The city shall immediately remove any sign deemed to present an immediate danger to the public health,
safety or welfare. Within ten days after the removal of the sign, the owner of the property on which the
sign was located shall be notified of the reasons for the removal of such sign.

(2) Upon written notification to the owner, agent, or person having beneficial use of the land, building or
structure upon which a neglected sign or an abandoned sign is located, such neglected sign shall be repaired
by the owner, agent or person having beneficial use thereof or such abandoned sign shall be removed. The

Page 52 of 64



notification shall state that the offending sign shall be repaired or removed within ten days after written
notification to do so. The notification shall further state that if the sign is not removed or repaired, a citation
may be issued and the city may pursue any remedy available to it to remove or repair the sign, up to and
including impoundment. See Impounded signs.

Public view means visible from any public right-of-way, city right-of-way, or access easement.

Pylon sign means a freestanding sign supported from the grade to the bottom of the sign having, or appearing
to have, a solid base made of stone, concrete, metal, brick, or similar materials designed to complement the architecture
of the building or complex.

(1) A sign permit is required,
(2) Pylon signs are prohibited in the Central Area (CA) Zoning District.
(3) Minimum height is eight feet. Maximum height is 20 feet including base, measured from grade.

(4) Maximum sign area is 150 square feel.
(5) Setback is 15 feet from the back of the curb. If no curbline exists, the setback shall be 15 feet from the
property line.

(6) Number of signs allowed is no more than one pylon sign per lot, with the following exceptions:

a. For lots over five acres abutting a state highway which is not classified as a business route: Minimum
200 feet of separation between other allowed permanent freestanding signs on the same lot.

b. For lots over 20 acres: Minimum 300 feet of separation between other allowed permanent
freestanding signs on the same lot. See Monument sign and pole sign.

Rear wall sign means a sign erected onto a wall with no main entrances or store fronts, and which does not face
the front or side of the lot.

(1) A sign permit is required.
(2) A building may have a maximum of one rear wall sign.

(3) Rear wall signs shall only be permitted in the CA Zoning District.
Revolving sign means any sign that turns, spins, or partially revolves or completely revolves 360 degrees on an
axis. Revelving signs are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Right-of-way means the area on, below, or above a public roadway, highway, street, public sidewalk, alley,
waterway, or utility easement in which the city has an interest.

Roof (secondary) sign means a sign that is mounted to or projects from a canopy or secondary roof over the
entry to a building, but does not project above the highest point of the building. A roof (secondary) sign may be
attached to a parapet wall.

(1) A sign permit is required.

(2) Inlieu of a wall sign, a roof (secondary) sign may be installed on a parapet wall, provided the parapet wall
extends around the entire perimeter of the building at the same elevation. A roof (secondary) sign may be
erected on a secondary canopy or a secondary roof over an entry to a building,

(3) The structural or mechanical elements of a roof (secondary) sign shall not be visible from six feet above
the grade of adjacent streets.

Roof sign means a sign mounted on and supported by the roof portion of a building, or above the uppermost
edge of a parapet wall of a building, and which is wholly or partially supporied by such building or a sign that is
painted directly to or applied on the roof or top of a building or structure.

(1) A sign that is mounted on mansard facades, pent eaves or architectural projections, such as canopies or the
fascia (wall) of a building or structure, shall not be considered to be a roof sign.

(2) Roof signs are prohibited in the city and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Sandwich board sign means a temporary sign constructed of two pieces of wood, metal, or other similar material
connected at the top by hinges or similar devices and may collapse when the connecting devices are overextended or
the two pieces are against one another,

(1)} A sign permit is not required.
(2) Sandwich board signs are only allowed to be displayed during normal daytime business hours between
Page 53 of 64



(3)

(4)

(5

(6)

8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

The maximum height is four feet. The maximum width is two feet. The maximum copy area is eight square
feet per side.

One sandwich board is allowed per primary entrance to a commercial structure, A sandwich board sign
must provide an unobstructed pedestrian clearance of at least four feet in width,

A sandwich board sign shall not be placed in any median. A sandwich board sign shall not be placed within
a utility or right-of-way easement. A sandwich board sign shall not be illuminated or contain any moving
parts other than the fasteners holding the faces of the sandwich board sign together.

A sandwich board sign shall not be placed in any manner to interfere with vehicular traffic or cause a
potential hazard. Sandwich board signs are allowed only in the CA Zoning District. See Signs in Central
Area Zoning District and A-frame sign.

School sign means an on-site temporary stake sign used to convey school registrations, enrollments, open houses,
award ceremonies, PTA meetings, or other school-related events or functions for a city-based public or private
educational facility to which the information pertains.

(1)
(2)
)

(4)

(8

(6)

A school sign excludes information pertaining 1o dates, times, and locations of scheduled athletic games.
No sign permit is required.

A school sign may be erected up to seven days prior to the event and shall be removed no more than 48
hours after the conclusion of the meeting or event.

With permission of the owner, a school sign may be placed at a private or public school or at an improved
property that has received a certificate of occupancy. A school sign erected on private property shall be no
closer than ten feet from the edge of any sireet pavement.

The maximum area of a school sign shall not exceed six square feet. The maximum height of a school sign
shall not exceed four feet.

A school sign shall not contain balloons, streamers, flags, pennants, or wind devices,

Security sign.

(m

(2)

The term "security sign" means a sign which identifies emergency telephone numbers, hours, and security
information.

No sign permit is required.

Sign means any medium, including its structure and component parts, including a name, number, identification,
description and announcement, declaration, demonstration, device, display, flag, banner, pennant, illustration, beacon,
light or insignia, and structure supporting any of the same, affixed directly or indirectly to or upon any building,
structure, or vehicle, or erected or maintained upon a piece of land, which directs attention to any object, project,
product, service, place, activity, person, institution, organization or business. The term "sign” shall also include any
device, fixture, placard, or structure that uses any color, form, graphic, illumination, or symbol to communicate
information of any kind to the public.

Sign area means the gross surface area of the sign, including a single surface of a sign with messages on both
sides, the sum of all surfaces where two or more signs share a single structure, the gross surface area of both faces of
a V-shaped sign not to exceed a 45 degree angle, and the copy area of a monument sign.

(1}

(2)

(3)
4)

(5)

The square footage of a sign made up of letters, words or symbols within a frame shall be determined from
the outside edge of the frame itself.

The square footage of a sign composed of only letters, words or symbols shall be determined from
imaginary siraight lines drawn around the entire copy or grouping of such letters, words, or symbols.

Double-faced signs shall be calculated as the area of one side only.

Three-dimensional or multifaceted signs shall be calculated as the maximum area visible from any single
direction at any point in time.

In the case of an irregularly shaped sign, the sign area is calculated by enclosing the extreme limits of the
sign by no more than four rectangles. The sum of the area of the rectangles shall be the gross surface area.
The maximum allowable area is reduced by ten percent for the second and each subsequent rectangle used
in the calculation.

Page 54 of 64



Sign height means the vertical height of a sign measured from the sign grade to the highest point of the sign or
its structure.

Sign setback means the horizontal distance between the closest portion of a sign, whether the support structure
or edge of the sign area, and the front or side property line, as measured from that part of the sign, including its
extremities and supports, nearest any point on an imaginary vertical plane projecting vertically from the front or side
property line.

Special event means a festival, fair, tournament, or other similar happening.

(1) Should city staff question a proposed activity or celebration as a valid special event, a description of the
proposed activity or celebration will be prepared by the applicant and forwarded to the city council by city
staff for the city council's consideration of the event as a special event.

{2) Business promotions, such as grand openings and sales events, shall not be classified as a special event.
Special event signs means temporary signs, banners, pennants, or lights as may be authorized for a special event.
(1) No sign permit is required.

(2) Signage associated with a special event shall be erected no earlier than seven days prior to the event and
removed no later than 24 hours after the conclusion of the event.

Stake sign means a temporary directional sign with a maximum height of three feet and a maximum copy area
of six square feet with an end for driving into the ground. A stake sign includes, but is not limited to, garage sale,
realior/open house, homebuilder directional, for rent, for sale, and similar signage.

Subdivision identity/entrance sign means a sign mounted to a screening wall or engraved into a masonry block
which identifies a residential development or a planned development, whether residential or noncommercial, and
generally refers to the platted name of the subdivision or planned development.

(1) A sign permit is required.
{2) A sign permit shall not be issued to erect or place a subdivision identity/entrance sign on a property until a
final plat is approved by the planning and zoning commission for development of the property.

(3) All subdivision identity/entrance signs shall be located within the platted limits of a residential subdivision
to which it pertains. Subdivision identity/entrance signs may be in the form of a sign mounted to a screening
wall that does not project from the fascia of the wall more than one inch. Subdivision identity/entrance
signs are limited to two signs per entrance.

Temporary religious sign means a temporary stake sign used to provide the name of and direction to a location
occupied by a religious organization or religious group that temporarily operates in a school or other facility. A
temporary religious sign identifies the meeting location and address, website information, hours of service, and
telephone number of a religious organization or group.

(1) A sign permit is not required.

{2) A temporary religious sign may be erected during times of worship, provided that the sign is placed no
earlier than two hours prior to worship and removed no later than two hours after worship.

(3) A remporary religious sign shall be placed on private property with consent of the property owner.
Temporary religious signs shall be erected on private property not closer than ten feet from the edge of any
street pavement or designated roadway or right-of-way.

(4) The maximum area of a temporary religious sign shall not exceed six square feet. The maximum height
of a temporary religious sign shall not exceed four feet.

(5) A temporary religious sign shall not contain balloons, streamers, flags, pennants, or wind devices. See
Banner signs.

Temporary sign means any sign used to display information that relates to a land use, or a sign with a limited
duration which is not rigidly and permanently installed into or on the ground, attached to a building, or as identified
in this chapter,

Traffic lights and signage mean any traffic-related sign, light, apparatus, or device installed and which provides
information to vehicular drivers and pedestrian traffic.

(1) No sign permit is required.

(2) Traffic-related signs, lights, apparatuses, or devices require approval from the engineering department,

Page 55 of 64



which includes the review and approval of design, size, placement, and any other specifications or
requirements prior to installation from the traffic engineer.

(3) Exemption. Signs, lighting, apparatuses, or devices installed or required by federal or state laws are
exempt from these provisions.

V-shaped sign means a sign that fronts two street frontages with more than five degrees of parallel. V-shaped
signs are prohibited in the city.

Vacant building sign.

(1) No sign shall be permitted to remain on the lot of, or on, any vacant building, except a sign regarding the
lease or sale of the building and property to which it pertains, or a sign which is under lease from an owner
or his authorized agent when such sign is maintained by a person operating under his own bond.

(2) Vacant building signage is prohibited in the city.

Variance request means an official written request to the planning and zoning commission to allow exceptions

to the regulations or requirements of this chapter.

(1) Variance requests shall be in writing and authorized by the property owner.

(2} Variance requests shall be heard by the planning and zoning commission at a public hearing.

{3) An application for such a request may be obtained from the city.
Vehicle means any operable or inoperable motorized machine on wheels, treads, or runners by which any
persons, materials, commodity, or property is or may be transported.

Vehicle sign means any sign attached to any vehicle, truck, car, bus, trailer, boat, recreational vehicle,
motorcycle or any other vehicle.

{1) Any vehicle, whether operable or no, shall not be parked or decorated where the primary purpose is to
use the vehicle as a sign.

(2) Vehicle signs shall exclude bumper stickers and state required registration or inspection stickers.
{3) No sign permit is required.

{4) WVehicle signs are allowed 24 hours each and every continuing day. Vehicles signs are permitted provided
the vehicle is operable, currently registered, and licensed to operate on public streets and actively used in
the daily function of the business to which such sign relates,

Vending machine sign means a sign attached to or incorporated as part of a vending machine or gasoline pump,
and generally advertises producis dispensed, offered or sold from the vending machine or gasoline pump.
(1) No sign permit is required,
{2) Vending machine signs may be displayed 24 hours each and every day.
{3) Vending machines displaying vending machine signs shall not obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic.

{4) Vending machine signs shall be directly attached to a vending machine or gasoline pump. Vending machine
signs shall be flat and not project from the vending machine or gasoline pump. Unless otherwise required
by federal, state or local laws, signs that promote products or other items shall not be attached to light
poles, canopy supports, rails, trees, parking signs, vehicles, or other objecis.

Wall sign means any sign erected against an exterior wall or erected parallel directly onto a wall. A wall sign is
a sign erected parallel to and extending not more than 12 inches from the facade of any building to which it is attached,
supported throughout its entire length by the building face. A wall sign identifies the name or logo of a business.

(1) A sign permit is required.

{2) Wall signs are permitted only in conjunction with a nonresidential use or in a nonresidential zoning
district.

{3) Maximum wall coverage for signs placed on the front or side of a building, which wall contains a main
entrance into the building, above the highest opening (window or deor), shall be limited to 25 percent of
the area, measured vertically from the highest opening (window or door) up to the highest point of the wall,
and horizontally from outside comer to outside comer of such wall, including openings.

{4) Maximum wall coverage for signs placed on the front or side of a building, which wall contains a main
entrance into the building, below the top of the first floor opening (window or door), shall be limited to ten

Page 56 of 64



(5

percent of the area, measured vertically from the top of the highest opening (window or door) down to the
sidewalk, and horizontally from outside corner to outside corner of such wall, including openings.
Maximum wall coverage for rear wall signs shall be limited to 15 percent of the rear wall surface, measured
vertically from the botiom of the wall to the roof, and horizontally from outside comer to outside corner
of the rear wall.

Wind device means any pennant, streamer, spinner, balloon, cloud buster balloon, inflatable objects or similar
devices made of cloth, canvas, plastic or any flexible material designed to float or move, or which moves freely in the
wind, with or without a frame or other supporting structure, used for the purpose of advertising or drawing attention
to a business, commodity, service, sale or product.

(1)
@)

(3

4)
C)

No permit is required,

Wind devices are allowed for temporary events only. Temporary events include business grand openings,
festivals, fairs, lournaments, or other similar happenings.

Wind devices shall be erected no earlier than seven days prior to an event and removed no later than 24
hours after the conclusion of the event.

Wind devices are allowed for not more than three 14-day periods per calendar year.

Flags and grand opening balloons or balloon arrangements shall not be considered a wind device.

Window sign means any sign, poster, window slick, or other similar displayed item, excluding banners, located
on the internal or external surface of a window, for the purpose of advertising a business's name, telephone number,
websilte information, services, commodities, or products offered or sold that are available within the building, that is
visible from a public street or sidewalk.

(1
(2)

(3)
4)

No sign permit is required.

The maximum area of a window sign shall not exceed 50 percent of the window where the sign is displayed.
[lluminated window signs shall not exceed 25 percent of a window and shall not be closer than three feet
from a public door. A window sign may be displayed 24 hours each and every continuing day.

Window signs may be displayed and installed on the inside or exterior of a window.,

[lluminated and nonilluminated window signs or their appendages shall not blink, strobe, fade, flash, scroll,
or move in any manner. Illuminated window signs shall remain static and stationary.

Yard sign means a temporary stake sign used to publicize the arrival of a newborn, participation of a family
member in a school activity or sport, the presence of a securily sysiem, animals, and seasonal decorations.

(1
(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

No sign permit is required,
Yard signs may be erected 24 hours each and every day.

Yard signs shall be located only on lots containing an occupied single-family, two-family, or multifamily
dwelling. Yard signs shall be erected no closer than ten feet from the street pavement.

Signs advertising the presence of a home security system shall not exceed one square foot in area.

Signs advertising the arrival of a newborn, the participation of a family member in a school activity or
sport, or the presence of animals shall not exceed four square feet in area.

Seasonal decorations are excluded from place and manner requirements.

Zoning sign means a temporary sign erected to publicize a request to zone or rezone a property.

(1)
(2)

No sign permit is required.

The zoning sign shall be placed in a location visible from all streets adjacent to the property included in
the zoning request. One zoning sign shall be erected adjacent to each street frontage of the property. The
area of a zoning sign shall be 16 square feet. The width of a zoning sign shall be four feet.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 3-1, 10-9-2007; Ord. No. 0-2013-0611-001, § 2, 6-11-2013)

Sec. 56-32. - Prohibited signs.
(a) Certain signs are prohibited in the city, including any sign which:

(1
(2)

Uses any combination of forms, words, colors, or lights to imitate emergency or traffic signs or signals;

Is obsolete or abandoned;

Page 57 of 64



)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Y

(9}

(h}

(1)
)]

(k)

0

(3) Is not specifically permitted by this chapter;

(4) Exceeds the maximum height and area requirements established in this chapter and any temporary sign
exceeding the time limits established in this chapter;

(6) Is not referenced in or governed by this chapter;

(8) Is erected or installed without the issuance of a permit (if a permit was required), either prior to or after
the adoption of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived;

(7) Emits odor or visible matter;
(8) Is erected or installed in or over a right-of-way or access easement, unless permitted within this chapter;

(9) Does not comply with this chapter or applicable municipal ordinances, or those which do not comply
with federal or state laws;

(10) Is a pole sign;
(11} Is an off-premises sign; or

(12} Is a vehicular sign.

It shall be unlawful for any person to display upon any sign any obscene, indecent or immoral matter, such as
will offend public morals or decency.

No person shall place or suspend from any building, light pole, utility pole, structure, sidewalk, parkway, and
driveway or parking area, any goods, wares, merchandise or other advertising or display of such items other than
a sign, as defined, regulated and permitted by this chapter.

No cloth, paper, banner, flag, device or other similar advertising matter shall be permitted to be attached to,
suspended from or be allowed to hang from, any sign, building or structure, when the same shall create a public
nuisance or danger.

No person shall attach any sign, paper or other material, or paint, stencil, or write any name, number (except
address numbers} or otherwise mark on any sidewalk, curb, gutter, street, utility pole, public building, fence or
structure, except as otherwise allowed by this chapter.

No person shall paste, stick, tack, nail or otherwise place any advertisement, handbill, placard or printed, pictured
or written matter or thing for any purpose upon any fence, railing, sidewalk or public property, including irees
thereon.

It shall also be unlawful for any person to scatter or throw any handbills, circulars, cards, tear sheets or any other
advertising device of any description, along or upon the street or sidewalk in the city.

No sign shall be illuminated to such intensity or in such a manner as to cause a glare of brightness to a degree
that it constitutes a hazard or nuisance to traffic. Moving, flashing, intermittently lighted, color changing,
beacons, undulating, swinging, rotating, revolving or similarly constructed signs shall not be allowed, except for
time and lemperature on an otherwise permitted sign, except as signs hung or displayed inside a window.

No rear lighted, or internally lighted, plastic signs shall be allowed in the Central Area Zoning District.
No portion of any sign shall be erected on or over public property, unless the same is erected by the city, or with
the permission of the city.

Any sign erected on a vertical framework supported by and located immediately and entirely over the roof of a
building is prohibited.

No portion of any sign shall be painted directly on to the exterior wall or facade of any building or structure other
than on a window or door.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 3-2, 10-9-2007)

(a)

Secs. 56-33-—56-52. - Reserved.

ARTICLE III. - ZONING DISTRICTS AND SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS
Sec. 56-53. - Signs for the Central Area (CA) Zoning District,

Policy and purpose.

(1) The Central Area (CA) Zoning District is a unique historical and cultural environment that provides
a certain charm and aura to the city which cannot be replaced and is worthy of preservation.

Page 58 of 64



2)

In an age of uniform franchise signs and generic, plastic box signs, historic signs and even new
historic styled signs (signs which emulate or imitate historic signage) often attract by their
individuality. Historic signage typically allowed buyers and sellers to communicate quickly using
images that were the medium of daily life. By communicating names, addresses, prices, products,
images and other fragments of daily life, historic styled signs also bring the past to life,

(b) Design considerations. In order to preserve the benefits of the CA, all signs in the CA shall have a design
appearance compatible with, reflective of, and incorporating materials and design elements utilized in, the
original building design, time era, and historic downtown character of the CA. The following points should be
considered when designing and constructing new signs for structures in the CA:

(M
()

(3)
(4)

()

(6)

(7)

New signs should emulate or imitate historic signage. The simple signs that were originally used on
these buildings serve as the best example for new signs,

Signs should be viewed as part of an overall graphics system for the historic building to which they
are attached. Signs should work with the building, rather than against it.

New signs should respect the size, scale and design of the historic building.

Sign placement is an important decision and new signs should not obscure significant architectural
features and building elements or design details of a historic building.

New signs should also respect neighboring buildings and add to the tapestry and appeal of the CA.
New signs should not overpower the historic building to which they are attached or adjacent
structures.

Sign materials should be compatible with the historic character of the building and the CA. Materials
characteristic of the building's period and style, used in contemporary designs, can form effective
new signs.

New signs should be attached to the building carefully to prevent damage to historic fabric and to
ensure the safety of pedestrians. Fittings should penetrate mortar joints rather than brick, for example,
and sign loads should be properly calculated and distributed.

{c) Sign standards.

(1

(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Allowable signs in the CA include general business signs, incidental signs, menu boards, nameplates,
wall signs and rear wall signs.

Signs shall be designed for pedestrian and slow moving traffic. Big does not mean better,

Signs shall be flat signs with an allowable thickness of no more than four inches, measured from the
wall surface to that portion of the face of the sign which projects furthest away from the building
wall.

Signs should be placed under the lower comice. No sign shall be allowed above the top of the second-
story windows of a building.

Signs may be placed on the building's fascia or on the sign frieze, which is the horizontal flat bank
above the store windows. Such signs may be on a flat signboard or made of individual letters or
symbols attached to the building's fascia or sign frieze.

Signs may be placed on an awning. The following shall apply:
a. Only one awning sign is allowed per building.

b. Awnings shall be positioned to emphasize special shapes or details of the facade, draw attention
to shop entrances, or to emphasize a display window.

€. Awning signs positioned along the first floor level of the facade shall be no less than eight feet
from the sidewalk to the sign.

d.  Awning signs shall not extend beyond the awning or canopy projection.

e. Awnings and awning signs shall not be made of metal, shiny plastic, barrel or square extension
awning, or internally-illuminated vinyl awning.

Sandwich boards are allowed provided they adhere to the following criteria:
a. One sign per primary entrance;

b. May extend out a maximum of two feet from the building, with the maximum of six square feet
of sidewalk area used.

Page 59 of 64



{8) Projecting signs that hang over the sidewalk are discouraged because they often obscure individual
buildings and interrupt the visual harmony of the street. A projecting sign that is attached to a wall
and extends out from a building may be used provided it meets the following criteria:

e.

The projecting sign shall not extend more than 15 inches in whole or in part horizontally or
diagonally beyond the surface of the building to which it is attached;

The projecting sign shall be placed along the first floor level of the facade;

Projecting signs must have a minimum clearance above the sidewalk of eight feet and shall not
extend 12 feet or more above the sidewalk nor above the roof line of the building to which it is
affixed;

The projecting sign shall be of a unique shape and design or symbolize the services offered
within the business being advertised, such as a bowl and trestle advertising a drug store or
pharmacy; and

The projecting sign shall be no more than four inches thick.

(9) Materials and colors shall be harmonious with the architecture of surrounding structures in the CA.

(10} Sign materials should be durable and easy to maintain, a,

Appropriate and acceptable sign materials include:

1. Painted or carved wood;
Carved wooden letters;
Galvanized sheet metal;
Porcelain enamel;

Slate, marble, or sandstone;
Gold leaf;

Gilt, painted, stained, or sandblasted glass; or

AL

8.  Stained glass.

b. Plastic shall not be allowed unless it is determined to have the appearance of one of the

appropriate sign materials identified herein.

{11} A sign in the CA shall not visually dominate the structure to which it belongs or call undue attention

to it

{12) No Day-Glo, fluorescent, neon or brilliant bright colored signs shall be allowed in the CA.. Standard
or traditional colors shall be used.

{13) No rear lighted, or internzlly lighted, plastic signs shall be allowed in the CA.

{14) No sign shall contain any moving parts or be lit from behind or internally unless and except it is an
historically accurate reproduction of a sign previously existing in the specific location proposed.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 4-1, 10-9-2007)

Sec. 56-54. - Zoning districts.
The zoning district in which the sign is located is established as indicated in Chapter 77, Zoning, and on the city
zoning map. The zoning provisions, as contained in Chapter 77, Zoning, and the zoning map may be amended from

time to time.

(1) Single-family residential district. Includes areas located in districts zoned SF-1, SF-2, SF-3, and PD-
Planned Development.

(2) Multifamily residential district. Includes areas located in districts zoned 2-F Duplex, MF-1, MF-2
Multifamily, and PD-Planned Development.

(3) Office and office technology district. Includes areas located in districts zoned O-Office, CA- Central
Area, HC-Highway Commercial, and PD-Planned Development.

(4) Commercial/retail district. Includes areas located in districts zoned GR-General Retail, NS-

Page 60 of 64



Neighborhood Services, HC-Highway Commercial, CA-Central Area, and PD-Planned
Development.

(5) Industrial district. Includes areas located in districts zoned L1 -Light Industrial, L2-Heavy Industrial,
and PD-Planned Development.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 4-2, 10-9-2007)

Secs, 56-55—56-81. - Reserved.
ARTICLE IV. - INSPECTIONS AND DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

Sec. 56-82. - Inspection; purpose and method.

The building official is authorized to perform an inspection of all signs. The purpose of the inspection is to

ensure that the sign has been constructed in accordance with this article, other applicable Code

provisions, and the applicable permits. The method and time of such inspections shali be determined by
the building official.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 5-1, 10-9-2007)

(a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

{e)
{f)

(9)

(h)

Sec. 56-83. - Sign specifications; design and other requirements,

Compliance with comprehensive zoning ordinance, International Building Code, National Electrical Code, and
other ordinances. All sign structures shall comply with Chapter 77, Zoning, as it currently exists or may be
amended by ordinance, the International Building Code, the National Electrical Code, and other Code
provisions, as they currently exist or may be amended by ordinance. If the standards as described in this
subsection are more restrictive than another Code provision or code, the provisions of this article shall apply.

Visibility. All signs shall observe all visibility requirements. Signs shall not be placed within visibility trangles,
corner clips, or easements as defined in the Thoroughfare Plan or Design Manual, as they currently exist or may
hereafter be amended. Signs shall not create a hazard.

Signs posted in specified areas. Unless otherwise permitted within this article, no person shall post or cause to
be posted, attach or maintain a sign upon any:

(1) City-owned property or right-of-way without written permission of the city manager or his designated
representative;

(2) Utility easement. Should a property owner be able to demonstrate to the city engineer or franchise
utility company that there is no other viable location for a sign other than a utility easement, a sign
may be located within the utility easement subject to written approval from the city engineer or
franchise utility company and subject to the providing of a letter to the city releasing the city of any
liability for repair or replacement of a sign damaged by work occurring within the utility easement;

(3) Tree, utility pole or structure, street sign, rail, or any fence;
(4) Fence, railing or wall, except in accordance with section 56-31; or

(5) Sidewalk within the right-of-way or sidewalk easement, curb, gutter, or street, except for house
numbers or fire lane designation.

Signs attached to fire escapes. No sign shall be attached in any manner to any fire escape or to the supporting
members of any fire escape, nor shall it be guyed to or supported by any part of a fire escape.

Accumulation of rainwater. All signs shall be constructed to prevent the accumulation of rainwater in the sign.

Location near telephone cable, power line, or street light. No sign shall be erected nearer than two feet from any
telephone cable, power line or any street light standard.

Signs not to block or interfere with exits or windows, or pedestrian and vehicular traffic. No sign shall be erected
to block, partially block, or interfere, in any way, neither with a required means of exit from any building nor
with any window. No sign shall block, interfere, or otherwise hinder pedestrian or vehicular traffic on a public
sidewalk, a public thoroughfare, a fire lane easement, or a driveway required to access parking.

(ilass signs over public property or pedestrian area. Signs constructed of glass or other materials which may
shatter upon impact are prohibited over a public right-of-way or pedestrian area.

Page 61 of 64



(i) Assumed wind load for design purposes. For the purposes of design of structural members in signs, an assumed
wind load of 20 pounds per square foot shall be used.

(i) Multiple signs on a property or building. The permitting of a sign on a property or building shall not preclude
the permitting of other types of signs on a property or building, unless the signs are expressly prohibited herein.
{k) Exemptions. Signs located within a building, with the exception of window signs, shall not be regulated by this

article.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 5-2, 10-9-2007)

Secs. 56-84—56-109. - Reserved.

ARTICLE V. -

VARIANCES

Sec. 56-110. - Variance procedures.

The planning and zoning commission shall perform the functions of the sign board of appeals (the "board").
Refer to article VI of this chapter for more information regarding the sign board of appeals. The following procedure
shall be followed when a request for a variance to these sign regulations is sought:

(1)

(2)

@)

(4)

(5)

Requests for variances to sign regulations and allegations of errors in orders, decisions, or
determinations by an administrative official in the administration of the sign regulations shall be made
in writing by the applicant and heard by the board at a public hearing. An application for such appeal
may be obtained from the city. The board shall hear, if possible, the request for a variance or the
allegation of error within 30 days after receipt of a completed application and applicable application
fees. The application will require written authorization from the property owner before being filed.

Before the tenth day before the date of the public hearing conducted by the board, written notice of
the public hearing shall be sent by its deposit in the United States mail to each owner, as indicated by
the most recently approved municipal tax roll of property within 200 feet of the property on which
the variance is proposed. The notice shall include a description of the time and place of such hearing,
a description of the location of the subject property, and a description of the requested variance. In
addition, the notice shall be published in the official newspaper of the city stating the time and place
of such hearing, a minimum of ten days prior to the date of the public hearing.

In order to approve a request for a variance, the board shall determine whether the request meets three
of the following four criteria:

a. The proposed sign shall not adversely impact the adjacent property (visibility, size and the like);
b. The proposed sign shall be of a unique design or configuration;

€. The variance is needed due to restricted area, shape, topography, or physical features that are
unique to the property or structure on which the proposed sign would be erected;

d.  The variance will substantially improve the public convenience and welfare and does not violate
the intent of this article.

Should the board deny a request for a variance, the applicant may appeal the request to city council.
A vote of three-quarters of the councilmembers present or four votes, whichever is greater, is required
to approve the appeal. The city council's decision is final. The appeal to the city council will require
renotification of the surrounding property owners and publication in the newspaper in the same
manner described in subsection (2) of this section.

A variance shall not be approved for a sign that is prohibited by this article.

(Ord. No. 2007-48, app. A, § 6-1, 10-9-2007)

Secs. 56-111-

56-133. - Reserved.

Page 62 of 64



IV. B. Consider, discuss, and act upcon the request from the City Council to
implement building height restrictions within the downtown commercial
district

Page 63 of 64



V. Adjournment

Page 64 of 64



